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The PSETA’s vision

is to facilitate

effective skills

development in

South Africa’s

public service.

The PSETA aims to

develop a dedicated,

skilled and productive

public service workforce

through the effective

coordination of skills

development, continued

education, focused

learnerships and training

programmes in the public

service for a vibrant

economy and a winning

nation.

The Skills Development

Act, No 97 of 1998,

through the

establishment of the

SETAs, provides the

institutional framework

for delivering skills

development.

The PSETA's stakeholder

scope covers all national

Government Departments,

all provincial

administrations, as well

as Parliament, national

legislatures, organised

labour and identified

parastatals.
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“It is my sincere belief that we can still do more to get thousands of young unemployed people

into employment to support and sustain current growth trends, the broader Accelerated and Shared Growth-South Africa (ASGISA)

projects and to contribute to the future maintenance of the massive infrastructure that is being developed.

We can still do more to get our people out of the poverty circle, we can still do more to improve the living standard of our

people and to make South Africa a better country within which to live and to invest.”

Minister of Labour, Mr Membathisi Mdladlana, at the National Skills Conference and Exhibition, 15 October 2008
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The PSETA team, back row (ltr) Ms Philisiwe Xulu, Ms Suzan Motsepe, Mr Rapula Phadi, Mr Deon

Neethling, Mr Daniel Makhetha and Mr Zamo Khuzwayo and in the front row (ltr) Ms Thelma Monaledi,

Ms Emily Mthimunye, Mr Francis Senona, Ms Koketso Makgoka, Mr Abbey Sekokope, Ms Mamello

Mahomed and Ms Lavhelesani Mainganye (not in photo Mr Sipho Majombozi, Acting CEO).
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• Identified four Institutes for Sectoral or Occupation Excellence (ISOEs)
against a target of two

• Enrolled 2 833 learners/workers in learnerships and skills programmes
against a target of 2 500

• Encouraged 90 government departments to spend 1% of their HR
budget on training and skills development against a target of 84

• 40 learners from the Department of Agriculture in Limpopo graduated
in Human Resource Management (level 4 qualification)

• 20 learners from the Office of the Premier in Limpopo graduated in
internal audit, with 90% successfully placed in permanent employment

• Processed and distributed all outstanding learner achievement certificates

for 2006

• Awarded certificates in Human Resource Management and Practices
Support to 562 learners and in Project Management to 709 learners

• Developed mechanisms to improve stakeholder reporting on learning
programmes

• Completed successful SAQA audit with provisional recertification as the
ETQA body for the public service sector

• Facilitated the development and registration of the National Certificate

in Official Statistics qualification and  the Strategic Sourcing  Unit

Standard for National Treasury

• Awarded additional full accreditation status to  eight  (8) PSETA strategic

partners as training providers

• Successfully updated the Sector Skills Plan

• Trained 340 Skills Development Facilitators in the use of the sector

career guide

• Participated in a pilot project of the Department of Labour to comment

on the software used in a new reporting system planned for implementation

in the second quarter of 2009

• Completed the concept paper and work plan for a project on Capacity

Development for Emerging Training Providers through a cooperative

strategy

• Presented workshops in all provinces to provide government departments

with evaluations of their Workplace Skills Plans (WSPs)

H i g h l i g h t s
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It is against this framework that I report on the activities, challenges and

achievements of the PSETA during the year under review. Our focus was

two-fold: addressing corporate governance issues through an enhanced

Board and subcommittee structure and responding to our NSDS targets.

Once again, I am pleased to report that our overall performance was

acknowledged by the Minister of Labour, Mr

Membathisi Mdladlana, as having met the require-

ments of our service level agreement with the Depart-

ment of Labour. The assessment also identified

areas of variance with NSDS targets as indicated

in the Performance Review section of this report.

Priority will be given to improving our performance

in these areas in the year ahead.

An important milestone was the strengthening of

the PSETA Board through the appointment of new

employer representative members by the Minister

of Public Service and Administration. These appoint-

ments increased the Board’s employer representation

and added significant knowledge and skills to give

effect to its mandate.

In this regard, I have pleasure in welcoming Ms Kimpi Moseki, Mr Bheki

Maduna, Mr Lawrence Tsipane, Ms Kgomotso Kgang, Mr Patrick Matshidze

and Mr Mahmood Hussein Fadal. Mr Fadal will join the Board as an in-

dependent Chairperson in the new financial year. We also thank the

outgoing Board members, Ms Sally Rowney, Mr Lese Matlape and Mr Vusi

Nhlapo, for their services.

4

     Ten years have passed since the promulgation of the Skills Development

Act (SDA) in 1998. During the ensuing period, South Africa's SETAs

(Sector Education and Training Authorities) have taken important strides

towards redressing the skills backlog. Understandably, much of the focus

has been on compliance and aligning activities with the National Skills

Development Strategy (NSDS) and initiatives such as the Accelerated and

Shared Growth Initiative for South Africa (ASGISA)

and Joint Initiative on Priority Skills Acquisition

(JIPSA).

Much has been achieved, yet the magnitude of the

task at hand still leaves millions of South Africa's

youth outside the formal learning system, unem-

ployed and living in poverty. There is an urgent

need now to consolidate the gains made and focus

on a mass delivery of the skills needed to create

employment, increase productivity and fast-track

improved service delivery across all sectors in South

Africa.

Challenges and achievements

Towards the end of my second year as Chairman of the PSETA Board, I

was heartened by the words of the Minister of Public Service and Adminis-

tration, Mr Richard Baloyi, to the PSETA Board at a repositioning workshop

in February 2009, when he said: “We strongly believe that the PSETA

needs to be revived to play a leading role in ensuring that our skills develop-

ment programmes are responsive and relevant to our social and economic

demands, whilst at the same time fulfilling individual needs and aspirations.”

The Public Service Sector Education

and Training Authority (PSETA)

strives to develop a public sector workforce

that delivers service excellence to the people

of South Africa. The PSETA empowers

workers with the appropriate education,

skills and training to render quality

services that are comparable with

world-class standards.

C h a i r m a n ’ s  R e v i e w
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5

creating a more stable internal environment at the PSETA. The intention
is to achieve greater effectiveness and efficiency in overall performance
and service delivery.

Appreciation

I would like to thank the Minister of Labour, the Honourable Membathisi
Mdladlana for his continued interest in the PSETA’s activities and the
Honourable Richard Baloyi, Minister of Public Service and Administration
for his contributions to ensuring that the PSETA flourishes as an organisation.
His encouragement also inspired greater cohesion amongst Board Members.

Thanks is also due to the Director-General of the DPSA, Prof Richard Levin
with whom we have shared many robust discussions, always in the best
interest of both parties and to see the realisation of an organisation of
which we can be proud.

I thank my fellow Board members for their guidance, active participation
and contribution to resolving salient issues at the PSETA, and our valued
partners, stakeholders and suppliers for their ongoing support. A special
word of appreciation goes to the PSETA team for taking the PSETA forward
on its journey to provide public sector workers with the skills and competence
needed to deliver service excellence to the South African community.

Way forward

We have raised the bar for our achievements in the 2009-2010 financial
year to finally see the PSETA function as an independent public entity,
fully compliant with required legislation and with an expanded structure
to deliver on its mandate. This achievement, together with the permanent
appointment of staff in critical positions, will enhance the PSETA’s capacity
to improve its performance. Priority will also be given to addressing
outstanding governance issues and finalising our tripartite relationship
with the DPSA and PALAMA.

We are primarily an agent representing the vision of Government who has
entrusted us, in the national interest, to succeed as a SETA. It is our
intention to turn the PSETA into a model SETA from which others can
draw best practices in developing sector skills for our country to flourish
and grow.

I look forward to the PSETA’s achievements as we go forward, and to seeing
its increasing impact on the successful implementation of training and
skills development in the public sector.

Mr Tahir Maepa
Chairperson

PSETA Board

15 July 2009
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Board subcommittees for ETQA/Learnerships, Skills Planning, human
resources, finance, audit and legal affairs were convened with clear deliver-
ables and time lines to deal with a number of urgent issues. These included
the anticipated section 197 transfer of staff from the DPSA to the PSETA,
the revision of policies to direct and guide the PSETA’s activities and
expanding the capacity of the PSETA to improve its service delivery.

The Human Resource subcommittee is finalising the staff transfer process
with the intention to move all the DPSA-seconded staff to the PSETA. The
Board also approved an expanded structure for the PSETA to increase
capacity and revised the Human Resource policies to facilitate recruitment
for the expanded structure. All the other PSETA policies were revised by
the relevant subcommittees and submitted to the Board for approval. A
Chief Financial Officer was contracted to consolidate and manage the
activities of this important function and strengthen the PSETA’s governance
performance.

An ongoing Board induction process was initiated to address skills gaps
and ensure that Board members understand their responsibilities. Activities
included training interventions and preparing a Workplace Skills Plan for
the PSETA Board.

During the review period, the Board’s interaction with various stakeholders
confirmed an urgent need to address perceptions of non-performance. The
challenge for the PSETA, as for many other SETAs, is not to expect people
to know about its activities but to actively create awareness about its
achievements. Amongst others, the PSETA’s success in providing unemployed
youths with the skills to enter the job market and find employment has
been significant. We have reached a point now where this communication
can be prioritised. In the near future, the PSETA will also fall under the
Department of Higher Education, which will improve the monitoring of its
activities and communication with stakeholders.

Relationships and internal stability

Discussions were held with the PSETA’s major stakeholders, the Departments
of Labour and Public Service & Administration and PALAMA (previously
SAMDI), to clarify roles and the effect of the current state of these relation-
ships on the PSETA’s ability to deliver against its mandate. The allocation
of high level training and skills development in the public sector to a
single institution will greatly facilitate the PSETA’s ability to be more
effective. A role clarification workshop has been set up for the new financial
year to finalise this process.

The appointment a permanent Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance
Officer are also set for completion in the new financial year. Clarifying the
PSETA’s role, together with the permanent appointments, the expanded
human resource structure to increase capacity and improved interaction
between the Board and members of staff will add significant value to
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The governance structure of the Public Sector Service Education and

Training Authority (PSETA) guides its strategy, operational effectiveness

and performance assessment to ensure that it functions as a responsible

and accountable public entity.

Framework

The PSETA is governed by the Skills Development Act, 1998 (SDA) as

amended, Skills Development Levies Act, 2003 (SDLA) and Skills Develop-

ment Amendment Bill, 2008, as well as the PSETA Constitution as set out

in the Government Gazette No 28005 Volume 483 of 8 September 2005.

It was relisted as an independent public entity as described in Section
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CG: Corporate Governance

DoL: Department of Labour

DPSA: Department of Public Service & Administration

ExCo: Executive Committee

HRD: Human Resource Development

NSDS: National Skills Development Strategy

PFMA: Public Finance Management Act

PS: Public Service

SLA: Service Level Agreement

SAQA: South African Qualifications Authority

SDA: Skills Development Act

SDLA: Skills Development & Learnerships Act

3(b) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (PFMA) on 28 April

2006 and aims to be fully operational as an independent SETA in 2009.

The PSETA is mandated, as a SAQA-accredited SETA in accordance with

the South African Qualifications Authority Act, 1995, to develop and

implement a sector skills plan within the framework of the National Skills

Development Strategy (NSDS) to monitor and audit achievements in terms

of national standards and qualifications falling with the public service

sector.

The reporting lines, legislative framework and interactive stakeholder

relationships through which the PSETA currently gives effect to its mandate

are:

King Report
on CG (II)

MoL

Staff

ExCo

SOA PS HRD
Strategy

MPSA

PSETA Board

SDA, SDLA

PFMA

Protocol on
CG in the PS

SAQA (Act)

NSDS
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The relationship between the PSETA and the Department of Labour is

governed by a service level agreement (SLA) that is renewed annually and

confirms the PSETA's function in terms of the Skills Development Act and

NSDS. The determination by the Minister of Labour in respect of the SLA

is final and binding and is the primary directive for the PSETA Board to

guide the functioning of the PSETA.

Composition of the Board

The PSETA Board was established in October 2006 and inaugurated on

5 July 2007 by the Minister of Public Service and Administration as the

authority accountable for ensuring sound governance in the public service

sector. Its role is to provide leadership and direction to the PSETA on the

achievement of its NSDS sector targets.

The Board is appointed by the Minister of Public Service and Administration,

as the Minister responsible for the Public Service, for a term of five years.

The Board can consist of 20 members comprising eight employer represent-

atives (government at senior management levels), eight organised labour
representatives, the PSETA Chief Executive Officer, one expert from each
of the PSETA constituencies, and an independent Chairperson.

At least four Board meetings are scheduled annually and special meetings
convened when necessary to consider urgent matters. During the period
under review, seven Board meetings took place. Meeting dates, member
attendance and equity status are reflected in Table 1.1.

During the 2008-09 financial year three replacements and six appointments
occurred. Ms Kimpi Moseki, Mr Bheki Maduna, Mr Lawrence Tsipane, Ms
Kgomotso Kgang, Mr Patrick Matshidze and Mr Mahmood Hussein Fadal,

Board member Organisation Equity Representing Board Meetings

25 Apr 31 Jul 3 Oct 15 Oct 12 Nov 22 Feb 13 Mar Total
08 08 08 08 08 09 09  attended

Mr Henk Bresler PSA WM Labour A A A P P P P 4

Mr Fransico Fields POPCRU CM Labour A P P P P P P 6

Mr Heflin Konkie NEHAWU BM Labour P P P P P P P 7

Mr Percy Huma NEHAWU BM Labour P P P A P P P 6

Ms Khomotso Kgang Dept Home Affairs BF Employer Appointed February 2009 P P 2

Mr Molaodi Khutsoane Gauteng Shared Services Centre BM Employer P A A A A P P 3

Ms Ina Kuhn PSA WF Labour P A A A A P P 3

Ms Nontsasa Lebaka NEHAWU BF Labour A P P P P P P 6

Mr Bheki Maduna Dept Labour BM Employer Appointed February 2009 P P 2

Mr Tahir Maepa (Chairman) PSA BM Labour P P P P P P P 7

Ms Rinki Magakula IEC BM Employer A A A A A A A 0

Dr Alex  Mahapa POPCRU BM Labour P A P P P P P 6

Mr Luyolo Sipho Majombozi PSETA (Acting CEO) BM Labour P P P P P P P 7

Mr Lese Matlhape* IDC of SA BM A A A A A A A 0

Mr Patrick Matshidze Medical Schemes BM Employer Appointed February 2009 P A 1

Ms Rachel Modikolo Modipa Premier's Office, Limpopo BF Employer P P P A P P P 6

Ms Kimpi Moseki Premier's Office, N West Province BF Employer Appointed February 2009 A A 0

Mr Vusi Nhlapo* Correctional Services BM A A A A A A A 0

Ms Sally Rowney* DPSA WF A A A A A A A 0

Ms Astrid Samboer PSA CF Labour P P P P P A P 6

Mr Lawrence Tsipane DPSA BM Employer Appointed February 2009 P P 2

Ms Thabo Zulu POPCRU BM Labour P P P A A P P 5

Table 1.1    Board equity status and attendance at Board meetings for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Black male (BM), White male (WM), Black female (BF), White female (WF), Coloured female (CF); A = Absent, P = Present). * Board members replaced with Board restructuring.

7
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who will be joining the Board in the new financial year as an independent

Chairman, were appointed and Ms Sally Rowney, Mr Lese Matlape and Mr

Vusi Nhlapo were replaced. The appointments increased the number of

employer representatives serving on the Board.

Governance principles

The PSETA's governance principles rest on policies and procedures that

include strategic planning, business goals and annually agreed objectives

aligned with the National Skills Development Strategy, and the day-to-day

management of these. The Board is committed to the principles of account-

ability and integrity and its responsibilities are governed by the Public

8

Board member Organisation Equity Representing Board Meetings

25 Apr 31 Jul 3 Oct 15 Oct 12 Nov 22 Feb Total
08 08 08 08 08 09  attended

Mr Zirk Agenbag Premier’s Office, Northern Cape WM Employer Appointed February 2009 A 0

Mr Dick Bvuma DPSA BM Employer Appointed February 2009 P 1

Mr Josias Chabane HSRC BM Employer Appointed February 2009 A 0

Ms Maud Dlomo Dept Foreign Affairs BF Employer Appointed February 2009 A 0

Ms Thembi Hlatshwayo Dept Public Works BF Employer Appointed February 2009 A 0

Mr Aubrey Josia Premier’s Office, Free State BM Employer Appointed February 2009 P 1

Dr Nomsa Mlondo Premier’s Office, Mpumalanga BF Employer Appointed February 2009 A 0

Ms Suzan Redelinghuys National Youth Commission WF Employer Appointed February 2009 A 0

Table 1.2  Alternate PSETA Board members (employer representatives)

Black male (BM), White male (WM), Black female (BF), White female (WF), Coloured female (CF); A = Absent, P = Present). * Board members replaced with Board restructuring.

Finance Management Act, 1999, as amended, and guided by the principles

outlined in the King II Corporate Governance Report. The Board approves

the PSETA's mission, strategy, goals, operating policies and priorities and

monitors compliance and performance against business objectives.

Governing the PSETA

Executive responsibility for the PSETA vests in the Chief Executive Officer

(CEO) as delegated to him by the Board, and the management team is

responsible for strategy implementation and the day-to-day affairs of the

organisation according to the policies, processes and systems approved

by the Board.
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9

Board Subcommittee Representative for Labour Representative for Employers

ETQA/Learnerships Subcommittee Mr Henk Bresler Dr N Mlondo
Ms Nontsasa Lebaka Mr Lawrence Tsipane

Financial Subcommittee Dr Alex Mahapa Mr Bheki Maduna
Ms Ina Kuhn Mr Molaodi Khutsoane

Skills Planning Subcommittee Mr Heflin Konkie Mr Kimpie Moseki
Mr T Mbevhana Ms Kgomotso Kgang

Human Resources Subcommittee Mr Percy Huma Mr Aubrey Josiah
Mr Thabo Zulu Mr Dick Bvuma

Legal Affairs Subcommittee Mr Fransisco Fields Ms Maud Dlomo
Ms Astrid Samboer

Table 2   Board Subcommittees and members

a caretaker role to manage the affairs of the PSETA until the appointment
of a new CEO. Prior to this Mr Majombozi served as the Chairman of the
PSETA Board. During the year a Chief Financial Officer was contracted,
which strengthened the PSETA's ability to give effect to its governance
and financial  imperatives. A CEO and CFO will be permanently appointed
in the new financial year.

Board induction and orientation

A Board induction process was put in place and will continue in the next
year to enhance members' understanding of the skills development
legislative framework, the business of the PSETA and related corporate
governance principles.

Fiduciary duties of Board members

All Board members are aware of their fiduciary responsibilities and the
need for fair, transparent and accountable decisions and actions. Board
members are individually and collectively liable for all Board decisions
and actions of omission and commission during their term of office.

Board member remuneration

A remuneration policy will be developed in the next financial year. During
the reporting period, Board members were reimbursed for travel costs.

Financial management

The Board decides on the funding requirements of the PSETA and is
responsible for financial statements that fairly present the state of affairs
of the PSETA at the end of each financial year in accordance with the
South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

Executive Committee

The Board is assisted by an Executive Committee (Exco) to which members

are appointed in accordance with the PSETA Constitution. The term of

office of the Executive Committee is similar to that of the Board. The

Committee is responsible for ensuring that the PSETA complies with the

financial requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, its

Constitution and other applicable legislation, and for the supervision of

the operational management and administration of the PSETA and its

managers.

During the reporting period Exco members were Mr Molaodi Khutsoane,

Mr Heflin Konkie, Mr Tahir Maepa, Mr Alex Mahapa, Mr Sipho Majombozi,

Mr Lese Matlhape, and Ms Lekgethile Mothoa. The Exco met three times,

on 18 May 2008, 22 February 2009 and 25 February 2009.

Board Subcommitees

These committees assist the Board in the performance of its functions

and consist of an equal number of members from organised labour and

employers. During the period under review subcommittees for human

resources, finance, audit and legal affairs as well as for ETQA, Learnerships

and Skills Planning were convened with clear deliverables and time lines.

Management

The CEO is accountable for the recruitment, appointment and management

of all the PSETA employees and reports to the Board on all matters relating

to operational and administrative management.

Mr Sipho Majombozi assumed office as Acting CEO in February 2008 in
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Board members are required to adhere to the Code of Conduct adopted

by the Department of Labour as approved by its Minister, which reinforces

their commitment to high moral, ethical and legal standards. The PSETA

will prepare its own Code of Conduct for Board approval in the forthcoming

financial year.

Materiality and signatory framework

National Treasury regulations, issued in terms of the PFMA, require that

the PSETA Board compiles a materiality and signatory framework approved

by the Department of Labour. This will be attended to in the next financial

year.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is accountable for risk management and internal control to

identify, assess, mitigate and monitor all known forms of risk. These

include risks pertaining to political and economic factors, people skills,

HIV/AIDS, technology, reputation, legislation compliance, professional

liability and general operational and financial risks including segregation

of duties and transaction approval frameworks. During the reporting period

risks were managed through the DPSA internal audit and risk management

team. The PSETA’s risk management process and internal control system

will be put in place in the forthcoming financial year.

10

(GAAP) and the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting

Practices (GRAP) as indicated in the financial statements to this Report.

Full cognisance has been taken of the requirements of the PFMA and

relevant Treasury regulations. During the reporting period, the PSETA's

procurement and human resources financial management was conducted

and managed by the DPSA and its financial statements prepared by the

DSPA auditors.

The Board is satisfied that an adequate accounting record was maintained

for the year under review and transactions were made in accordance with

the applicable laws and instructions, and in all material respects in

accordance with the mandatory functions of the organisation determined

by law or otherwise.

Ethics and Code of Conduct

The PSETA values excellence, performance, outputs and results, and

people development including equal opportunity and empowerment, as

well as quality governance and service delivery. These values form the

cornerstone of its interactions with internal and external stakeholders.

Employees are expected to maintain the highest ethical standards to

ensure that all business practices are conducted in a manner that is

beyond reproach. Processes are in place for transgressions to be investigated

at Board level.

Ltr standing: Ms Kgomotso Kgang, Mr Bheki Maduna, Mr Audrey Josias, Mr Lawrence Tsipane, Mr Henk Bresler, Mr Fancisco

Fields, Mr Heflin Konkie, Mr Percy Huma, Ms Rachel Modipa. Ltr sitting: Ms Nontsasa Lebaka, Mr Mahmood H Fadal, Mr Johannes

Rantete, Ms Astrid Samboer, Mr Sipho Majombozi, Ms Thabo Zulu and Ms Ina Kuhn.
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The National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS) is aimed at addressing
the structural problems of the labour market inherited from the past, and
transforming the South African labour market from one with a low skills
base to one characterised by rising skills levels and a commitment to
lifelong learning. The NSDS also seeks to ensure that through responsive
education and training the labour market is better able to cope with the
social development challenges in our country such as poverty, inequality,
disease and unemployment. The NSDS is an inclusive strategy that
addresses national, sectoral, workplace and individual needs. -
NSDS Implementation Report 2004

In support of the NSDS, The PSETA is inspired by a vision of empowering

workers with the education, skills and knowledge needed provide the public

service sector with world-class services. We strive to develop a workforce

that understands the value of service excellence and is willing to take

responsibility for providing the people of South Africa with service delivery

that is uncompromised.

Mandate and business environment

The PSETA is mandated to facilitate, coordinate and monitor the implement-

ation of the National Skills Development Strategy in developing transversal

skills for the public service sector and coordinating the sector's interests

across line-function SETAs.

Our activities are therefore aligned with the sector-specific success

indicators of the NSDS II, which enters the final lap of its 2005-2010

five-year period in 2009. Strategically we support the government's

Accelerated and Shared Growth Initiative for South Africa (ASGISA) and

Joint Initiative for Priority Skills Acquisition (JIPSA). From 2009 our

activities will also be guided by the Skills Development Amendment Act
of 2008.

Strategic objectives for the year under review included:

• Creating a framework for effective governance
• Improving stakeholder communication and repositioning the PSETA brand
• Improving service delivery
• Developing and entrenching strategic partnerships and relationships
• Implementing equity principles.

A specific focus during the past financial year has been on preparing the
PSETA for its re-establishment as a Schedule 3A public entity in 2009.
In the year ahead we will submit the application and look forward to re-
establishment as the public service sector SETA in 2010. This process
has given us the opportunity to interact with a wide variety of stakeholders
and listen to many differing viewpoints on our performance. While we
readily acknowledge that there is room for improvement in the way we
serve our constituencies, we were also heartened by many favourable
comments and significant encouragement from stakeholders for our
endeavours.

A number of highlights

A highlight for the past year has been the good progress made with the
transfer of DPSA-seconded staff to the PSETA. The Board’s Human
Resource subcommittee facilitated an inclusive and transparent transfer
process which served to assure employees that their conditions of service
in the new dispensation would not be prejudiced by joining the PSETA.
Their willingness to accept responsibility as PSETA employees has added
stability to our work environment and value to our service improvement
drive, leaving no room for non-performance.

This Annual Report presents the activities of the PSETA for the financial year ended 31 March 2009.

R e p o r t  b y  t h e  C h i e f  E x e c u t i v e  O f f i c e r
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In addition, a closer working relationship with the DPSA Minister has
expedited the finalisation of the PSETA’s re-establishment process, while
good progress was made in bringing together the DPSA, PALAMA and PSETA
as strategic partners. Endorsements of confidence in the PSETA from
government departments, other SETAs and PALAMA have affirmed
our belief that we will be successful as an autonomous entity.

The PSETA completed a successful SAQA audit and
achieved provisional recertification as the ETQA
body for the public service sector. We also registered
an official statistical qualification and unique
standard on strategic requisition for National Treasury,
and fully accredited eight strategic partners as
training providers.

We also successfully updated our Sector Skills Plan,
trained 340 Skills Development Facilitators on the
use of the sector career guide and participated in
a pilot project of the Department of Labour to
comment on the software used in a new reporting
system planned for implementation in second quarter
of 2009.

Operational management overview

Since the delisting of the PSETA in 2001, the DPSA performed the de
facto management functions pending the PSETA’s re-establishment as a
public entity. In July 2005, the Minister of Labour approved the constitution
of the PSETA and appointed a Board of Directors as the accounting
authority. The DPSA, however, continued to provide corporate management

functions to the PSETA which, at times, created a challenging environment

for the PSETA to deliver against its mandate. It also impacted on efforts

to institute the appropriate governance, management and administrative

mechanisms to function as a public entity.

The three-year process during which the PSETA endeavoured to establish

its autonomy is now coming to an end. Since the previous reporting period

(2007-2008) our focus has been on finalising all

outstanding matters in this regard. We drafted a

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the DPSA

to formalise the relationship and transfer the

corporate management services to the PSETA

according to instructions and guidelines from the

Auditor-General. Staff members have been key

agents in many aspects of the process, with the

DPSA-requested amendments made and the MoU

completed for signature at the end of March 2009.

The DPSA continued to provide the PSETA with

corporate services and will do so until the revised

MoU takes effect.

During the past year we have also had a series

meetings, workshops and team building sessions to create an enabling

environment for improving our corporate governance practices, service

delivery and repositioning as the public service SETA. In this regard, I am

appreciative of the commitment and energy with which the Board sub-

committees tackled their respective portfolios. This considerably light-

ened the workload in the office of CEO and freed up the time needed to

oversee the re-establishment process.

12

The PSETA’s activities cover all transverse

and generic training and skills development

for the public service sector. These include

learnerships, sector skills planning through

workplace skills plans, grant disbursements,

and education and quality assessment and

training. It is also responsible for the quality

assurance of transversal training in all

national and provincial government

departments and selected parastatals.
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Position Number Salary level Equity

Chief Executive Officer 1 PN BM

Director: Skills Planning 1 13 BM

Director: ETQA 1 13 BM

Director: Learning Programmes 1 13 BF

Director: Procurement 1 (Contract) 13 BM

Deputy Director: Skills Planning 1 11 BM

Deputy Director: Learner Achievement Management 1 11 WM

Deputy Director: Grant Disbursement 1 12 BF

Deputy Director: Learning Programmes 1 11 BF

Deputy Director: Learning Programmes Vacant 11 N/A

Deputy Director: Learning Programmes Vacant 11 N/A

Personal Assistant: CEO Vacant 6 N/A

Administrator: CEO 1 6 BF

Administrator: Skills Planning 1 6 BF

Intern Administrator: Skills Planning 1 Intern BF

Administrator: ETQA 1 (Contract) 6 (Contract) BF

Administrator: Learning Programmes 1 6 BF

Administrator: Learning Programmes 1 (Contract) 6 BF

Total staff as at 31 March 2009 15

Table 3 PSETA staff complement as at 31 March 2009

* Black male (BM), White male (WM), Black female (BF), Personal notch (PN)

With the assistance of the Board, considerable time was spent and satis-
factory progress made on appointing a permanent Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer for the PSETA. Both appointments will be
finalised in the new financial year.

Human resources

The activities of the Human Resource Subcommittee resulted in the revision
of the entire human resource policy, which was submitted to the Board
for approval. An expanded human resource structure has been developed
to create the capacity for the PSETA to achieve its NSDS targets. While
our staff complement is growing, we also take pride in the fact that our
contractor element has been retained for almost a record period in a
flexible work environment.

Our ongoing focus is on creating the competence and capacity to improve
service delivery and effectively achieve objectives. In this regard, our aim
is to embed a work ethic that supports ongoing employee education and
training in line with their key result areas. In the forthcoming period the
Human Resource Subcommittee will evaluate staff satisfaction to determine

our success in this area and indicate the need for further improvement.

As at 31 March 2009 the PSETA’s staff complement, reflected in Table

3, consisted of 15 (2008: 19) employees. Skills development included

induction training for Board members and staff in the office of the CEO, as

well as in-house training, short courses and workshops. Two bursaries were

awarded for a BA (Communication Science) and Advanced Diploma in

Organisational Development.

The staff turnover of four during the review period is well below sector

average. The resignations of two Learning Programme deputy directors

and a personal assistant were due to career advancement opportunities.

An administrator resigned when the contract came to an end. A Chief

Financial Officer and Procurement Director were appointed both on contract.

Financial management overview

The regulations of the National Treasury applied to the PSETA while its

corporate management functions resided with the DPSA. During the year

under review, therefore, grant funding was still supplied through the DPSA.
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For the first time the PSETA’s accounts for the past financial year were
audited by the Auditor-General, which was made possible by financial
policies developed by the Board Finance Subcommittee and the appointment
of the Chief Financial Officer.

Funding for the 2008-09 financial year amounted to R21 million (2007:
R18 million), with R22 million approved for the 2009-2010 financial
year. Final expenditure for 2008-2009 amounted to R19 748 240 million
(2007: R25 482 673 million).

The funding through the DPSA covered mainly employee compensation
and the routine operations of the PSETA. A new financial model, which
makes provision for amongst others initiating skills training projects, will
be implemented when the PSETA starts functioning as an independent
entity in 2009. The purpose of the new model is to remove current
constraints on the PSETA to fulfill its education, training and skills
development mandate.

The activities of the Board’s Finance Subcommittee and the full-time
contracted services of the Chief Financial Officer from the DPSA placed
our financial management function on solid ground and significantly
reduced the workload in the office of the CEO. These contracted services
will continue until a permanent appointment is made.

We are confident that the relevance and continued existence of the PSETA
is assured, despite stakeholder feedback and discussions about implementing
a single public service concept.

Stakeholder communication

One of the areas highlighted as a weakness by our stakeholders is that of
stakeholder communication. Deficiencies in this area resulted mainly from

a lack of capacity in marketing and communication at the PSETA. We

have since developed a Communication and Public Relations plan to

address the need for regular communication and awareness creation. Full

implementation will depend on the availability of resources, which is being

addressed by the expanded structure developed for the PSETA. Filling the

vacancies in this structure is, however, dependant on finalising the PSETA’s

new funding model.

Priorities for the 2009-2010 financial year

Our focus for the year ahead will be on communicating and implementing

the financial, human resource and service delivery policies developed by

the Board subcommittees. In addition, a recruitment drive will be undertaken

to strengthen our capacity, particularly in the corporate services, human

resource and marketing functions.

The PSETA Board also prioritised the following areas at its end-of-year

strategic planning session, namely to:

• Institutionally strengthen the PSETA

• Address Corporate Governance imperatives

• Enhance the PSETA brand

• Develop and implement a marketing framework and communication

strategy

• Strengthen strategic partnerships and effective stakeholder relations

• Manage the tripartite collaboration between the DPSA, PALAMA and

the PSETA

• Develop a framework for monitoring programme service delivery.
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The government has prioritised education and skills development. Our

vision for the next five years and beyond is to intensify our efforts to

support these priorities. The PSETA’s success in this regard will depend

on the approval of a new funding model to increase our capacity and

enable us to meet these lofty goals. We look forward to finalising this

process in the forthcoming financial year.

Mr Sipho Majombozi
Acting CEO

15 July 2009

Appreciation

I would like to thank our Board members for their guidance and support
and our stakeholders for their interest and contribution to our achievements.
We thank the Minister of Labour, Mr Membathisi Mdladlana, the Minister
of Public Service and Administration, Mr Richard Baloyi, and the officials
in their Departments for their interest, cooperation and support to the
PSETA in the delivery of its services.

Much appreciation also goes to the PSETA staff for their “gentle reminders”

to the CEO and self-direction about meeting deadlines, and commitment

to applying their knowledge about the PSETA’s core business to achieve

our objectives.

Board approval

In the opinion of the PSETA Board, the information contained in this

report fairly reflects the operations and financial position of the PSETA

for the indicated period.

Way forward

We have committed ourselves to position the PSETA as an organisation

with a hassle-free payment system to pay service providers promptly and

ensure that we do not compromise on quality – in true Batho Pele spirit,

the reason is simple: people, their time and their skills are precious and

we need to optimise their ability to provide us with service excellence.

We will also prioritise the recruitment drive to fill the vacancies in the

PSETA’s expanded structure, which will enable us to increase our efforts

in meeting and exceeding our NSDS targets.
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P e r f o r m a n c e  R e v i e w

a SAQA-accredited Education and Training Quality Assurance (ETQA) body,

as reported in Table 4.

In the year ahead, significant emphasis will be placed on addressing the

areas indicated in the performance review where the PSETA did not meet

its targets, specifically in assisting designated groups, including new

entrants, with grants for work-integrated learning and work-based

programmes, as well as improving the quality and relevance of skills

development in the public sector.

16

The PSETA is mandated, as the SETA responsible for promoting skills

development amongst government departments and selected parastatals,

to develop effectively educated, skilled and knowledgeable public sector

workers that take responsibility for service excellence in the sector they

represent.

The PSETA’s performance during the period under review, aligned to the

NSDS II success indicators for the public service sector, is reflected

through its key initiatives in Learnerships, Skills Planning and its role as

Table 4 Performance against NSDS II indicators and PSETA strategic objectives

NSDS II success indicators Sector 2005-2010 target PSETA annual target Performance as at end Variance
2008-2009 March 2009 explained

1 Prioritising and communicating critical skills for sustainable growth, development and equity

1.1 Skills development Target the same for each year Update Sector Skills Plan • SSP Update was developed, Met target
supports national and from 2005-2010 as described (SSP) with qualitative content signed off and submitted
sectoral growth, under annual target through identification of skills to Department of Labour
development and equity  gaps and development by closing date of
priorities requirements 31 August 2008. 

1.2 Information on critical skills Target the same for each year Annual guide for critical skills • 340  skills development Exceeded target
widely available to learners from 2005-2010 as described needs developed and available facilitators trained on by 140
and impact researched, under annual target to learners and 200 skills updated Scarce & Critical
measured and communicated development facilitators and Skills lists which form part
wrt rising entry, completion sector specialists trained in of Sector Career Guide
and placement of learners  its use • Capacity building workshops

held for 340 skills
development facilitators
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Table 4 Performance against NSDS II indicators and PSETA strategic objectives continued

NSDS II success indicators Sector 2005-2010 target PSETA annual target Performance as at end Variance
2008-2009 March 2009 explained

2 Promoting and accelerating quality training for all in the workplace

2.3 By March 2010 at least Target the same for 29 national and 85 • Encouraged 90 government Exceeded target
80% of government depart- each year from 2005-2010 provincial government departments to spend 1% by 5%
ments to spend at least as described departments respectively to of HR budget on training
1% of human resource under annual target spend at least 1% of human and skills development
budgets on training and resource budgets on training • 99 WSPs (64% return rate)
impact reported and impact measured received by 30 June 2008

and reported

2.7 By March 2010 70% of Target the same for each 2 500 workers registered • 1 991 workers registered Variances respectively of 509 and
 public sector workers year from 2005-2010 and 1 250 completed ABET on ABET Levels 1-4 944, due  to challenges:

achieved at least ABET as described Levels 1-4 • 306 workers completed a) PSETA provides support only to 
 Level 4 under annual target ABET Levels 1-4 implement programmes

b) Lack of reporting
c) Lack of PSETA MIS to

manage data

2.8 Assist workers to enter and At least 125 000 workers Assisted 2 500 workers to • 2 833 workers entered Exceeded enrollments,
complete programmes entered and 50% completed enter learning programmes programmes variance of 209 against
leading to basic entry, learnerships and and 1 250  workers to have • 1 216 workers completed completions due to challenges
intermediate and high-level apprenticeship completed learning programmes a) and b) indicated in 2.7 above
scarce skills programmes and measure programmes

impact of assistance

4 Assisting designated groups, including new entrants to participate in accredited work-integrated learning and work-based programmes to
acquire critical skills to enter the labour market and self-employment

4.1 Increase number of At least 125 000 At least 2 775 unemployed • 1 102 unemployed workers Variances of 1 673
unemployedand students unemployed assisted to workers enrolled and 2 135 enrolled and 671 and 1 464 respectively, due to
entering and completing enter learnerships, successfully completed completed learnerships challenges indicated in 2.7 above
learnerships and internships and skills learning programmes for apprenticeships and to be addressed in
apprenticeships for basic programmes and at least basic entry, forthcoming financial year
entry,intermediate and 50% to have successfully intermediate and  
high-levelscarce skills completed programmes high-level scarce skills

4.2 Assist learners in critical Assist 100% of learners in 200 learners assisted to • 279 learners assisted with Variance of 721 due to
skills programmes covered critical skills programmes to gain work place experience grants to gain work place failure of some government
by sector agreements with gain work experience and at and 70% to find placement experience departments to submit internship
FET and HET institutions to least 70% to find in employment or self- contracts as required, to be 
gain work experience locally placements employment addressed in the forthcoming
or abroad of self-employment  financial year
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Table 4 Performance against NSDS II indicators and PSETA strategic objectives continued

NSDS II success indicators Sector 2005-2010 target PSETA annual target Performance as at end Variance
2008-2009 March 2009 explained

5 Improving the quality and relevance of the provision of skills development

5.1 Establish Institutes of By March 2010, recognise Support two ISOEs • Four ISOEs identified Exceeded the target by 2

Sectoral or and support five ISOEs nationally through PPPs 

Occupational Excellence in public institutions

(ISOEs) through public and through PPPs,

private partnerships (PPPs) wide geographic spread to

attain critical skills

5.3 Improved SETA service Four provider institutions Identify four provider • Accredited Western Cape Variance of 1 to be

delivery and NQF accredited to manage institutions in each province Administrative  Academy addressed through increased

implementation as required service delivery for KZN Provincial Public liaison with provinces to

 by SAQA each province Service Training Academy and establish and accredit

PALAMA academies

• Working with the North West,

Eastern Cape (through

University of Fort Hare),

Northern Cape (through the

National Institute of Higher

Education) and Free State

Provinces to establish and

accredit provincial academies
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• monitor compliance with quality assurance processes through project

agreements with line function SETAs to manage learnerships and

related agreements

• develop opportunities for occupational learnerships

• finalise outstanding learner achievement certificates.

Achievements against business objectives

Our activities in giving effect to our business objectives are reflected in

the Table 5.

Six learnerships (2008: 8) against a target of five were developed, revised

and submitted to the Department of Labour for registration. These were

for Public Administration (level 3), Public Finance Management (level 5),

Governance and Administration (level 6) and Education and Training

Practitioner (level 5). The learning framework for Public Administration

(level 5) was developed, while the one for Public Finance Management

L E A R N I N G  P R O G R A M M E S

The PSETA advises government departments on the implementation,

monitoring and evaluation of learning programmes. The focus of the PSETA

Learnership Unit is to develop, register and promote learnerships, skills

programmes and other formal learning programmes for the public service

sector.

This is done through:

• identifying workplaces for practical work experience

• supporting the development of learning materials

• improving the facilitation of learning

• assisting in the conclusion of learnership agreements

• registering and managing learnership agreements

• supporting, monitoring and evaluating the implementation of

learnerships.

Our continued interaction during the past year with employers and human

resource departments in government and at parastatals again had positive

results, with an increase in the use of learnerships registered with the

PSETA.

During the year under review, we focused on giving effect to a number of

objectives in support of the NSDS success indicators and the strategic

priorities of the PSETA, namely to:

• facilitate, monitor and evaluate the implementation by government

departments and parastatals of learnerships and related reporting

Learnership Highlights

• ABET learners in the Kwa-Zulu/Natal area taken through the NQF
level 1 qualification in Human Resource Management (level 4 
qualification)

• Graduation of 40 learners in Human Resource Management 
(level 4) in the Limpopo Department of Agriculture

• Graduation of 20 learners in Internal Audit in the Limpopo Office
of the Premier, with 90% of learners absorbed into permanent
employment.

K e y  I n i t i a t i v e s
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Table 5 Performance against learnership business objectives - 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Learnerships objectives 2008-2009 Performance against objectives

Develop opportunities for occupational learnerships by developing/revising • 1 learnership revised and reregistered
and registering/reregistering 5 learnerships and 20 skills programmes • 1 learnership reviewed and registered
for the related qualifications • 4 learnerships developed and pending registration with Department of Labour

• Skills programmes developed and registered

Finalise outstanding learner achievement certificates and distribute • All outstanding learner achievement certificates processed and distributed
to learners

Enter into Service Level Agreements (SLA’s) with line function SETAs • SLAs  secured with:
to monitor learnerships for compliance with quality assurance processes - SABPP (n/w, DFA, DPSA, Public Works & Transport, Agriculture National)

- THETA
- FASSET (provided with vetting process and feedback to departments on intent)
- SERVICESETA (provided a list for registration for project management)
- CETA
- ESETA

Distribute the PSETA learnership implementation toolkit to stakeholders • Learnership implementation toolkit distributed to all workshop participants

Present information sharing workshops in each Province • Information sharing workshops presented in all Provinces

Key:  SABPP (South African Board for People Practices); DFA (Department of Foreign Affairs); DPSA (Department of Public Service & Administration); THETA (Tourism, Hospitality, Sport Education & Training Authority);
FASSET (SETA for Finance, Accounting, Management Consulting and other Financial Services); CETA (Construction, Training & Education Authority); ESETA (Energy Sector Education & Training Authority).

certificates for the Project Management learnership.

Information sharing workshops were held in all provinces with participants

from government departments to share tools for managing the implementation

and reporting of learning programmes. Feedback highlighted issues such

as the need for evidence-based reporting to support training budget

(level 5) will be completed during the year ahead. Table 6 indicates the

PSETA registered skills programmes developed with stakeholders.

All outstanding learner achievement certificates for 2006 were processed

and distributed and certificates in Human Resource Management and

Practices Support awarded to 562 learners, while 709 learners received
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expenditures, registering learnership agreements prior to programme

commencement and thorough monitoring and evaluation of the

implementation of learnerships to enable successful completion. The

Learning Programmes Unit will be better placed to attend to these issues

in the forthcoming financial year when the PSETA's recruitment drive has

been completed and additional capacity is available to address stakeholder

issues.

The registration of a NQF level 1 qualification during the reporting period

and piloting this qualification during the forthcoming financial year will

enable the PSETA to improve its performance and meet the ABET level

4 achievement target. Pilot project sites for the implementation of this

qualification were identified and an implementation plan with objectives

developed for finalisation between the provincial stakeholders in Kwa-

Zulu/Natal and the Eastern Cape.

Mechanisms were also developed to improve stakeholder reporting on

learning programmes, while the DPSA-drafted policy for the use of 1% of

human resources budgets for training and skills development by government

departments will be finalised and implemented in the new financial year.

Performance against NSDS II targets

Table 7 reflects the performance of the Learning Programmes Unit against

its targets for the period under review.

Achievements included:

• 2 833 (2008: 2 485) workers enrolled in learnerships, skills programmes

and bursaries against a target of 2 500

• 580 (2008: 322) registrations for ABET Level 1 against a target of 100

• 478 (2008: 223) registrations for ABET Level 2 against a target of 400

• 110 (2008: 9) achievements of ABET Level 1 against a target of 50

• 609 (2008: 296) unemployed learners completed learnerships against

a target of 500.

While the Unit met and exceeded some of its targets, performance against

others did not meet expectations. This was mainly due to challenges in

obtaining learnership reports from stakeholders and a shortage of staff to

monitor stakeholder implementation and progress against set targets.

Priority will be given to improving the Unit’s performance in this regard

in the year ahead.

Memoranda of Understanding (MoU) were signed with other SETA ETQAs,

as reported above, to clarify the terms of cooperation, coordinate the

performance of their functions and promote consistency in the application

of their quality assurance policies and procedures.

Internally, process improvements included an intake of interns to accelerate

data capturing and upload learner information, while additional members

of staff were recruited to improve service delivery to stakeholders.This

process will continue in the year ahead, with a focus on recruiting staff

with specialisation in areas relevant to attaining NSDF targets.

Table 6 Skills programmes for Public Service Communication Level 5 and SAQA identification number 50583

Title NQF levels Total Credits

Financial Management 4 & 5 10

Information Knowledge & Records  5 65

Maintaining Democratic Principles 4 & 5 32

Networking 4 & 5 9

Coordinate with various Unites/Stakeholders 4 & 5 24

Producing Audio-Visuals 4 & 5 10

Stakeholder Relations 4 & 5 6

Sustaining Oral Interaction 4 & 5 13

Conducting Media-related Research 4 & 5 20

Developing Communication Policy 4 & 5 8

Writing and Editing 5 & 6 52

Cooperate Branding 4 & 5 3

Internal Communiqué 4 & 5 5
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Indicator Target Achieved

Learning programmes 200 0

Learnerships 1 075 485

Internships 500 589

Unit standard-based skills programmes 1 000 28

Total 2 775 1 102

SLA Success Indicator 4.1: Unemployed workers enrolled

Indicator Target Achieved

Learning programmes 100 54

Learnerships 535 609

Internships 500 0

Unit standard-based skills programmes 1 000 8

Total 2 135 671

SLA Success Indicator 4.1: Achievements

Indicator Target Achieved

Bursaries 1 000 1 145

Learnerships 200 206

Unit standard-based skills programmes 1 300 1 428

Total 2 500 2 833

SLA Success Indicator 2.8: Workers enrolled

*   MTA: Manpower Training Act

Indicator Target Achieved

Learning programmes 250 116

Learnerships 275 222

Unit standard-based skills programmes 900 878

Total 1 425 1 216

SLA Success Indicator 2.8: Achievements

Indicator Target Achieved

ABET Level 1 100 580

ABET Level 2 400 478

ABET Level 3 1000 375

ABET Level 4 1000 558

Total 2 500 1 991

SLA Success Indicator 2.7: Entries

Indicator Target Achieved

ABET Level 1 50 110

ABET Level 2 200 17

ABET Level 3 500 19

ABET Level 4 500 160

Total 1 250 306

SLA Success Indicator 2.7: Achievements

Table 7 Performance against 2008-2009 Service Level Agreement success indicators
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Indicator Target Achieved

Student Internships 1 000 279

Total 1 000 279

SLA Success Indicator 4.1: Workplace experience enrolled

While the Unit experienced a number of highlights and exceeded some

of the NSDS II targets, many challenges remain. The PSETA’s role in learn-

erships needs to be broadened to drive and facilitate the implementation

of learning programmes. This will enhance its ability to address ongoing

challenges, such as compliance by departments with the registration and

implementation procedures for learning programmes, the implementation

of PSETA qualifications, and receiving the information needed to enable

evidence-based reporting on government’s skills development expenditure.

Way forward

The Learning Programmes Unit will revise the reporting frequency by

stakeholders to collect and verify supporting evidence for a comprehensive

analysis of the public service sector’s investment in skills development

and training. Provincial departments will receive internship contracts and

learnership agreements prior to implementing projects. The purpose is to

ensure that reporting is done in accordance with Schedule 2B as stipulated

by the Department of Labour. The latter will advance information collation

in a well-structured and systematic manner for qualitative reporting.

In addition, a request for funding submitted to the National Skills Foundation

to implement learnerships for 1 700 unemployed youth, and create 300

internship opportunities for graduates and 110 opportunities for disabled

learners, will be followed up in the forthcoming period. The intention is

to roll out the project in all provinces in the new financial year if the

funding is approved.

Initiatives will also continue to include support to government departments

through workshops for which annual schedules and activities will be made

available to all provinces.In this regard, staff members will work on

provincial clusters to maximise efforts and support to departments.
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S K I L L S  P L A N N I N G

A SETA's skills planning activities are guided by its Sector Skills Plan.

These plans are aligned with the current cycle of the National Skills

Development Strategy (NSDS II) and are updated annually to reflect the

structural, economic and social changes in the SETA sectors. The updated

plans are submitted to the Department of Labour as input to the development

of national skills strategies.

The PSETA Sector Skills Plan - developed for the 2005-2010 period to

align it with the current NSDS II five-year cycle - is aimed at improving

the skills base for the public service sector and addressing its socio-

economic imperatives. The Skills Planning Unit is responsible for skills

planning, skills reporting and special SETA skills projects for the sector.

During the reporting period, the Unit's objectives focused on:

• Updating the Public Sector Skills Plan with qualitative and quantitative

content - target: submit to the Department of Labour by end August

2008

• Building capacity for skills planning and implementation - target:

capacity building workshops with 149 national and provincial government

departments/parastatals/legislatures

• Monitoring and supporting training committees - target: interaction with

92 training committees

• Encouraging departments to invest 1% of their human resource budgets

in training as required by the Skills Development Act - target: 84 depart-

ments

Skills Planning Highlights

• Sector Skills Plan successfully updated and 340 Skills Development
Facilitators trained in the use of the Sector Career Guide and
Scarce Skills List

• Workshops held to provide government departments with feedback
and evaluation reports on their Workplace Skills Plans

• Participation in a pilot project for the Department of Labour to
comment on the software used in a new reporting system planned
for implementation in the second quarter of 2009.

Achievements against objectives

Public Sector Skills Plan

Data from the Workplace Skills Plans – of which 99 (2008: 95) were

received from government departments during the reporting period – was

used to update the PSETA SSP. The quality of the Workplace Skills Plans

had noticeably improved, partly due to the simplified template for completing

Workplace Skills Plans and Annual Training Reports provided to departments

during the 2007-2008 financial year.

• Quarterly reporting of achievement against Service Level Agreement

targets in Schedule 2B Reports - target: four reports validated by the

Department of Labour

• Rendering ongoing support to departments on request.
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The Sector Skills Plan was signed off by the PSETA Chairman and the

Director-General of the Department of Public Service and Administration

as the ‘strategic driver’ of human resource management in the public

sector.

Table 8 Submission of Work Skills Plans (WSPs) and
Annual Training Reports (ATRs)

National and Provincial Departments WSPs/ATRs WSPs/ATRs
expected submitted

National departments 34 24

Legislatures 10 5

Provincial departments

Eastern Cape 11 5

Free State 11 5

Gauteng 13 8

Kwa-Zulu/Natal 14 5

Mpumalanga 12 11

Northern Cape 12 7

Limpopo 11 10

North West 11 7

Western Cape 10 12

TOTAL 149 99

Scarce and critical skills

Chapter 4 of the PSETA Sector Skills Plan contained the Scarce and

Critical Skills List for the public service sector, updated with data from

the Workplace Skills Plans. The information was loaded onto the Department

of Labour’s Employment Services of South Africa (ESSA) system by the

end of August 2008 to comply with the requirement for every SETA to

annually upload the updated sector list. The information is used by the

Department of Labour to compile and publish a National Scarce and

Critical Skills list.

Capacity building

Workshops were held in all Provinces with a total of 340 (2008: 90) Skills

Development Facilitators (target 200) – significantly more than the previous

year – to discuss the evaluations of their Workplace Skills Plans, Annual

Training and Quarterly Monitoring Reports, and provide feedback on

submission rates, quality of content, use of the simplified template,

government expenditure on skills development and stakeholder involvement.

The workshops also guided Skills Development Facilitators in the use of

the Organising Framework for Occupations (OFO) to identify and code

scarce and critical skills and assisted them with the preparation of their

Workplace Skills Plans for the forthcoming financial year. General concerns

and challenges, such as difficulty in identifying correct codes, or occupations

not reflected in the OFO, were addressed. The workshops were well-

attended and indicated support for the PSETA’s initiative to prepare

individual evaluation reports to identify gaps and provide recommendations

for improvement.
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Training committees

A part of the Skills Planning Unit’s capacity building focus is to ensure

that government departments, parastatals and legislatures have training

committees. An analysis of the Annual Training Reports indicated that all

departments have formed functioning training

committees. Much of the sector’s training is now

NQF-aligned as most courses are credit-bearing and

therefore recognised by the Department of Labour

and on the National Qualification Framework (NQF).

Interaction with all these committees is planned

for the forthcoming financial year when the Skills

Planning Unit will have more capacity to assess

effectiveness, monitor performance and continue

to build capacity where needed.

Utilisation of human resource budgets for training

The Skills Planning Unit set itself a target of

encouraging 84 government departments to use

the required 1% of their human resource budgets

for training purposes. At the end of the reporting

period, 90 departments had indicated that this had

been done.

Career guide

The sector career guide – developed in 2008 to

comply with the requirements of the NSDS to profile

scarce and critical skills and detail career paths

for different occupations within the public service sector – was distributed

to all Skills Development Facilitators. The guide provides learners at school,

unemployed graduates and public servants with information about career

paths in the public service sector and the available learning programmes.

An addendum was added to the career guide with

information on training needs and opportunities

in the public service. A Workplace Skills Plan temp-

late was also inserted to provide Skills Development

Facilitators with a step-by-step process to link

training to the strategic objectives of government

departments and organisations that they interact

with.

Facilitators are expected to liaise with strategic

planners to ensure that training priorities are

identified and linked to business objectives. The

overall goal is to optimise training interventions

and improve performance.

The Department of Public Service and Administration

and PALAMA (Public Administration Leadership

and Management Academy) also assisted government

departments in these endeavours.

Way forward

Skills planning in the public sector and the related

compliance with legislation have improved signifi-

cantly compared to the situation three to five years

The PSETA Skills Planning Unit

• Promotes the integration and coordination
of needs-based training in the public service
through the development of a Sector Skills
Plan (SSP)

• Coordinates the development, submission
and evaluation of Workplace Skills Plans
(WSPs) in the public service

• Monitors and evaluates the implementation
of public service Workplace Skills Plans 
through Quarterly Monitoring Reports
and Annual Training Reports

• Reports on all training interventions in
the public service sector through a quarterly
Schedule 2B report to the Department of
Labour

• Develops and implements mechanisms for
assessing the impact of training in the
public sector

• Coordinates research to enhance skills
development in the public service sector.
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ago, mainly due to the effective use of Workplace Skills Plans.

The slight dip in compliance by government departments to report their

training interventions during the reporting period was partly due to the

PSETA’s inability to offer incentives in the form of grants. A lack of capacity

also impeded the Unit’s ability to effectively monitor skills planning

activities. An increase in capacity in the new financial year will enable

the Unit to intensify its monitoring and follow-up activities with all

government departments, parastatals and legislatures. The Unit looks

forward to the launch of the DPSA Regulations for Skills Development

in the Public Service during the forthcoming financial year, which will

assist with issues of compliance.

In the year ahead, the PSETA Skills Planning Unit will develop a new five-

year Sector Skills Plan for the period 2010-2015 and train Skills

Development Facilitators to use the new Workplace Skills Plan software

of the Department of Labour. A new sector career guide will also be

developed and will be lodged with the State Library, Universities and

Technikons.
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E D U C A T I O N  A N D  T R A I N I N G  Q U A L I T Y
A S S U R A N C E  ( E T Q A )
The PSETA ETQA is a SAQA-accredited quality assuror for the public
service sector, responsible for the monitoring and auditing of learning and
competence against NQF-registered national standards.

As such, the ETQA Unit contributes to the attainment of the PSETA's mission
and key objectives of bridging the skills gap and creating an educated
workforce to meet the social development needs of all South Africans.

The PSETA ETQA issued a total of 216 (2008: 167) certificates of
competence for the following learners:

Qualification Constituency No of
learners

National Certificate Mpumalanga Provincial 110
Public Administration Administration
NQF Level 3

National Certificate Presidency and Gauteng 39
Public Administration Department of Public
NQF Level 3 Transport and Roads

Advanced Diploma Department of International 37
Diplomacy Level 7 Relations & Co-operations

National Certificate Department of International 23
Mission Administration Relations & Co-operations
Level 5

Advanced Certificate Department of International 7
Mission Administration Relations & Co-operations
Level 6

Qualification Constituency No of
learners

National Certificate South African Police Services 137
Public Administration Limpopo Dept of Roads and Transport 25
NQF Level 3 National Dept of Social Development 13

National Dept of Minerals and Energy 10
National Dept of Human Settlement 14

Further Education & Limpopo Dept of Roads and 15
Training Certificate Transport (Skills Programme)
Public Administration Limpopo Dept of Roads 27
NQF Level 4 and Transport (RPL)

Unit Standards including Presidency, Cell C and Treasury 388
Protocol Training, and
Leadership and Financial
Management in the
public sector

In total, the public service sector now has 22 private and in-house accred-

ited providers. During the year under review, the PSETA ETQA awarded

full accreditation to a further 10 (2008: 23) new training providers, five

with full qualifications and five for short courses (unit standard-based);

approved programmes for four training providers accredited elsewhere and

awarded three training providers with provisional accreditation. All accredited

providers are Gauteng-based. Four state academies and 14 providers were

re-accredited.

As at end March 2009, 629 (2008: 230) learners were enrolled in the

following:
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The SAQA opinion, stated in the draft performance audit report, confirmed

that the PSETA ETQA met its statutory obligations by delivering activities

that supported and promoted the objectives of the National Qualifications

Framework.

In response to SAQA’s final performance audit report, the PSETA submitted

a development plan to address the areas of non-compliance identified

during the audit. In the new financial year, the Unit will retain the services

of an external expert to assist with the development of a turnaround

strategy. The purpose is to guide the SETA in addressing the non-compliance

areas and implement the development plan. This

will help reposition the PSETA as an ETQA body

for the sector in the new skills development dispen-

sation.

In addition to the activities in the development plan,

the ETQA Unit will continue its active engagement

with stakeholders. This includes promoting quality

assurance through further increasing qualifications

and unit standards, certifying learning achievements

against PSETA registered qualifications, and

providing support to training providers, especially

state academies.

National Learners’ Records Database (NLRD)

SETAs submit data on sector qualifications, unit

standards, learner enrolments and achievements,

provider accreditations and assessor registrations

annually to the SAQA NLRD. These records are

ETQA Highlights

• Registered an official statistical qualification and unique standard

on strategic requisition for National Treasury

• Completed successful SAQA audit with provisional recertification

of PSETA as ETQA body for the public service sector

• Completed identification process for Institutes of Sectoral or

Occupational Excellence (ISOE)

• Completed concept paper and work plan for a project on Capacity

Development for Emerging Training Providers

• Fully accredited eight training providers, who are also PSETA

strategic partners.

SAQA performance audit and re-accreditation

The South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA) conducted an Education
and Training Quality performance audit of the PSETA’s ETQA Unit in May
2008. As a result of the audit, the PSETA was provisionally recertified as
the ETQA body for the public service sector.

Business objectives

Key objectives during the reporting period, based on the success indicators

of the NSDS II, were to:

• Maintain the ETQA status of the PSETA

Outputs: SAQA compliance and ETQA re-accreditation

• Achieve ISOE (Institute of Sectoral or Occupational Excellence) status

for strategic providers

Output: Three ISOEs recognised and supported

• Ensure that the PSETA has quality-assured,

accredited training providers

Outputs: Provider development project, provider

accreditation, pool of learning programme

evaluators, ETQA monitoring and evaluation

framework

• Ensure that the PSETA has quality-assured

assessors and moderators

Outputs: Assessments moderation, learner cert-

ification, efficient MIS system, sector-specific

qualifications, Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL)

pilot project, Quality Management System (QMS)

review

Performance against objectives

• Maintain the ETQA status of the PSETA

Outputs: SAQA compliance and ETQA

re-accreditation

The SAQA Act No 58 of 1995 and the ETQA Regulations No R1127
of 1998 require an annual audit of all ETQA bodies in accordance
with the Procedures for the Monitoring and Auditing of ETQAs gazetted
in 25 October 2001. The audit provides an independent and objective
evaluation of ETQA performance against SAQA audit criteria (effective-
ness, efficiency and economy) and ETQA management in optimising
resources and giving effect to policies, principles and standards to
achieve organisational goals.

The overall purpose of the

PSETA ETQA

• Accredit constituent training providers

• Promote quality training and validate
assessments

• Register constituent assessors and
moderators

• Certify constituent learners

• Facilitate the development of standards
and qualifications

• Upload learner records to the SAQA
National Learner Record Database
(NLRD)

• Maintain a quality database to support
the PSETA.
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used by employers and learners to respectively identify training and learning

opportunities. The PSETA, through the ETQA, decided to review its

management systems, namely revising the management information system

(MIS) and revitalising the quality management system (QMS). The web-

enablement of the QMS, which was developed and implemented in 2006,

and the procurement of a MIS are planned for the next financial year.

Achieve ISOE (Institute of Sectoral or Occupational Excellence) status for

strategic providers

Output: Three ISOEs recognised and supported

Following the launch of an ISOE pilot project in Kimberley in 2008 to

promote and improve the quality of training provision, the ETQA Unit

identified Institutes that meet the PSETA ISOE criteria and submitted the

identified providers to the Board for approval. The agreed-upon support

initiatives will be rolled out in the next financial year.

Ensure that the PSETA has quality-assured and accredited training providers

Outputs: Provider development project, provider accreditation, pool of

learning programme evaluators, ETQA monitoring and evaluation framework

The accreditation of training providers is a main focus of the PSETA ETQA.

The renewed interest from training providers in the training needs of the

public service sector, seen during the previous financial year as a result

of the SAMDI (South African Management Development Institute - now

PALAMA) massification training strategy which emphasises collaboration

rather than competition, showed a marked downturn during the reporting

period.

Activities to realise the outputs for this objective included:

Provider development project

Project planning was done to create at least 45 co-operatives as training

providers for accreditation against PSETA registered qualifications.

Provider accreditation

During the past year a targeted 10 (2008: 23) providers were accredited

against the PSETA registered qualifications and unit standards - five with

full qualifications and five with unit standard-based qualifications. Full

provider accreditation went to the Department of Foreign Affairs, the

Diplomatic Academy, People Architects, Proactive College and PALAMA.

Four state academies and 14 private training providers were re-accredited.

Pool of learning programme evaluators

The PSETA covers a broad range of transversal learning areas. Training

providers submit their programmes to the ETQA Unit for accreditation and

approval. Subject matter experts are used to evaluate training programmes

against NQF requirements, such as NQF levels, credits, relevance and

strategy. Since the inception of this practice in 2006, the quality of

training programmes has improved significantly. This practice continued

effectively during the past year.

Monitoring and evaluation framework

The ETQA Unit identified the areas within government where quality-

assured education and training would have an impact on service delivery.

This informed the development of terms of reference for a service provider

to assist with the development of a monitoring and evaluation framework

to measure the ETQA’s impact on service delivery.
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Due to capacity constraints in the ETQA Unit no provider monitoring was

done during the past year.

Ensure that the PSETA has quality-assured assessors and moderators

Outputs: Assessment and moderation, learner certification, Recognition

of Prior Learning (RPL) pilot project, sector-specific qualifications, efficient

MIS system, Quality Management System (QMS) review

Assessment and moderation

A key quality assurance focus area is assessment and moderation. The

PSETA uses accredited ETDPSETA (Education and Training Development

Practitioners) training providers, registered as constituent assessors/

moderators, to assess skills and competency against NQF unit standards

and develop assessments and related materials.

The ETQA Unit held a series of assessment education workshops during

the past year to build capacity in this area and increase the pool of

registered assessors and moderators. During the year under review, a

further 53 new assessors were registered for PSETA qualifications and

unit standards. Twenty moderators were registered during the same period.

The graphs above are an analysis of the status of assessor registration by

the ETQA.

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL)

The PSETA commissioned the development of a RPL policy and strategy

for the public service sector during the 2008-2009 reporting period. The

completed documentation was submitted to the DPSA as a sectoral

management framework to contribute to the successful implementation

of the 2007-2015 Human Resource Development strategy for the sector.

The strategy is aligned with the NQF principles and SAQA Act, 58 of 1995

and recognises all role-players in acknowledging existing knowledge and

skills and assessing learning achievements against NQF-registered unit

standards and qualifications.

Facilitation and generation of unit standards and qualifications

The PSETA currently recognises 23 sector-specific qualifications as

reflected in Table 9. Due to the PSETA's funding model, the uptake of

these qualifications is largely driven by public service departments.

Experience has shown that training providers invest only in the accreditation

of qualifications used by these departments. As such, the PSETA’s joint

venture agreement with SAQA to develop and register sector-specific

qualifications, signed during the previous financial year, aims to ensure

that only demand-driven qualifications and unit standards are developed

and registered.
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Table 9 Sector-specific qualifications and NQF levels for registration with SAQA

NLRD ID No Qualification NQF level

49197 Further Education and Training Certificate: Social Housing Supervision Level 4

23976 National Certificate: Local Employment and Skills Development Practices Level 4

48761 National Certificate: Mission Administration Level 5

49055 National Certificate: Foreign Economic Representation Level 6

49107 National Certificate: Inspection and Enforcement Services Level 5

49196 National Certificate: Social Housing Property Development Level 6

49198 National Certificate: Social Housing Property Management Level 6

49257 National Certificate: Conflict Management and Transformation Level 5

50060 National Certificate: Public Administration Level 5

50418 National Certificate: Immigration Law Enforcement Level 5

50419 National Certificate: Port Control and Admissions Level 5

50438 National Certificate: Immigration Services Level 5

50583 National Certificate: Public Service Communication Level 5

50585 National Certificate: Public Service Communication Level 6

57804 National Certificate: Public Administration Level 3

57805 National Certificate: Public Sector Employment and Skills Development Practices Level 5

57824 Further Education and Training Certificate: Public Administration Level 4

57827 National Diploma: Public Administration Level 7

57897 National Diploma: Public Administration Level 6

58346 Further Education and Training Certificate: Public Administration Management (Linked to 57712) Level 4

64330 Advanced Certificate: Mission Corporate Services Management Level 6

64329 National Diploma: Diplomacy Level 7

65649 National Certificate: Statistics Level 5
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SThe inadequacy of the PSETA’s quality management and management

information systems resulted in delayed accreditation decisions and

learning programme approvals. The ETQA Unit initiated two projects during

the past financial year to ease the strain on these systems. The first was

a proposal to upgrade the quality management system, which was submitted

to the PSETA Board for approval. The Unit also launched an internal

awareness campaign to optimise the use of quality management policies,

procedures and review mechanisms.

A lack of capacity prevented the upgrading of the PSETA management

information system, which will be completed in the new financial year.

The initial success of this system gave rise to HR Connect, the human

resource planning solution for the public service sector.

Way forward

The immediate challenge for the ETQA Unit is to fulfill the SAQA

requirements for addressing areas of non-compliance to maintain the

PSETA’s ETQA accreditation status for the next three years. Attention will

also be given to developing and implementing a re-positioning strategy for

the PSETA as a quality assurance body in terms of the NQF Act and Skills

Development Amendment Bill of 2008. This includes investigating the

establishment of Communities of Expert Practice (CEPs) and appointing

a professional body to manage, govern and administer this in the public

service sector.

Forums will be established, jointly with PALAMA, to re-engage inactive

providers and assessors and explore mechanisms to identify and develop

a qualifications framework for the public service sector.

The commitment and hard work of the PSETA ETQA team deserves acknow-

ledgement, as does the valuable contributions from the PSETA Learning

Programmes and Skills Planning teams.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMANT ON THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION OF PUBLIC SERVICE

SECTOR EDUCATION TRAINING AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

2009

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. I was engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of the Public
Service Sector Education Training which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2009, the statement of financial performance, the
statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, as set out on pages [xx] to [xx].

The accounting authority's responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting
determined by the National Treasury as set out in accounting policy note 1 to
the financial statements and in the manner required by the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and for such internal
control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

The Auditor-General's responsibility

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South
Africa, 1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25
of 2004) (PAA) and section 14(6) (a) of the Skills Development Act, 1998
(Act No. 97 of 1998), my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
statements based on conducting the audit in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing and General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government

Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008. Because of the matters described in the
Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, I was not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.Basis
for disclaimer of opinion

Comparative figures and opening balances
4. I was unable to obtain sufficient accounting records and adequate
documentation to support the following balances:

• Opening balance and comparative figure of the non-current asset: National
Skills Fund amounting to R15,490 million as disclosed in note 6 to the
financial statements. As a result, I could not determine the existence,
valuation and completeness thereof.

• Opening balance and comparative figure of trade and other payables
amounting to R1,829 million as disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statements. As a result, I was unable to determine the rights and obligations,
valuation and completeness thereof.

• The opening balance and comparative figure for the accumulated surplus
as disclosed in the statement of changes in net assets amounting to R27,994
million.

5. Furthermore I was also unable to verify the accuracy of the comparative
figures disclosed per the cash flow statement. My opinion on the financial
statements for the period ended 31 March 2008 was modified accordingly.
My opinion on the financial statements of the current period is also modified
because of the effect of this matter on the comparability of the current period's
figures and the corresponding figures.

Receivables
6. PSETA has recognised a receivable amounting to R2,755 million, relating
to operational expenditure paid from the National Skills Fund (NSF), which
does not meet the definition and recognition criteria of an asset.  In addition,
supporting documentation was not provided for payments amounting to R0,323
million included in the R2,755 million. As a result, I was unable to verify the
rights and obligations and valuation thereof.



PSETA ANNUAL NOV 09 (SPLIT) 11/11/09 11:27 AM Page 37 

Composite

C M Y CM MY CY CMY K

35
A

U
D

I
T

O
R

’
S

 
R

E
P

O
R

TPayables

7. PSETA has not recognised a liability for the NSF reserves for the years ended
31 March 2008 and 31 March 2009. As a result I was unable to determine
the completeness, valuation, rights and obligation and presentation and
disclosure thereof. Alternative procedures could not be performed, due to a
lack of accounting records and sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

Related parties

8. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the
completeness and valuation of the disclosure of related-party transactions and
balances as per note 15 to the financial statement.

Cash and equivalents

9. I was unable to verify the completeness and valuation of the bank balance
as at 31 March 2009 due to a lack of evidence to support a reconciling amount
of R36 000.

Disclosure notes

Irregular expenditure

10. PSETA has omitted disclosure of the following material irregular expenditure
which was incurred during the financial year. This is contrary to section 55(2)(b)
of the PFMA which requires disclosure of irregular expenditure in the annual
financial statements. I could therefore not verify the completeness, valuation
and presentation and disclosure of the following irregular expenditure.

• R1,192 million incurred due to  non-adherence to supply chain management.

• Irregular expenditure incurred due to alleged misuse of funds which are
under forensic investigation.

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) 1

11. The following disclosures, which are required in terms of GRAP 1 were
omitted from the financial statements:

• The appropriation of surplus funds for the year ended 31 March 2009
amounting to R2,763 million (31 March 2008: R2,094 million)

• New accounting pronouncements which the entity must comply with by 1
April 2009 had not been disclosed as required by GRAP 1.

Financial Instruments

12. Financial instruments disclosure is not included in the financial statements
as required by International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7.

Accounting authority's remuneration

13. The accounting authority's remuneration has not been disclosed as required
by Treasury Regulations 28.

Government grants and assistance

14. Disclosure of administrative funding received from the DPSA amounting
to R14,748 million (R11,312 million prior year) as per note 16 and NSF
transactions and balances per note 6 to the financial statements, is not
complete, due to omissions of details stipulated per the requirements of
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 20.

Events after balance sheet date and contingent assets and liabilities

15. Due to a limitation of audit scope regarding the availability of forensic
reports, I could not confirm the accuracy and completeness of the disclosure
for contingent liabilities in terms of IAS 37 as well as events after reporting
date in terms of IAS 10.

Going concern

16. The omissions and misstatements described in the above paragraphs (basis
for disclaimer of opinion), indicates the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The financial statements
do not disclose this fact.

Disclaimer of opinion

17. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, I have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly,
I do not express an opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of matters
18. I draw attention to the following matters on which I do not express a
disclaimer of opinion:

Basis of accounting

19. The public entity's policy is to prepare financial statements on the basis
of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set out in accounting
policy note 1 to the financial statements.

Unauthorised, irregular or fruitless and wasteful expenditure

20. PSETA incurred fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R73 439
as disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

Restatement of corresponding figures

21. As disclosed in note 11 of the financial statements, the corresponding
figures for the year ended 31 March 2008 have been restated as a result of
an error discovered during the year ended 31 March 2009.

Other matters

22. I draw attention to the following matters that relate to my responsibilities
in the audit of the financial statements:

Relicensing
23. SETAs were established for a five-year period until 31 March 2010. It is
expected that the legislated renewal process will be concluded by 31 March
2010.

Non-compliance with applicable legislation
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)

24. General responsibilities of accounting authorities PFMA 50(1) were not
fulfilled.
25. Delegation of authority did not take place as prescribed by FPMA 56.
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26. The accounting authority of the public entity did not keep full and proper
records of the financial affairs of the public entity up to date since inception,
as required by PFMA 55.

27. The accounting authority did not establish an internal audit function as
required by PFMA 55.

28. Non compliance with section 54 of the PFMA, which requires that the
accounting authority for a public entity must submit to the relevant treasury
or the Auditor-General such information, returns, documents, explanations and
motivations as may be prescribed or as the relevant treasury or the Auditor-
General may require.

29. Annual report not submitted within the required timeframe as per PFMA
55(1) and 55(3).

Treasury Regulations (TR)
30. Risk assessment not conducted as required by TR 27.2.1.

31. No supply chain management unit has been established as required by
TR16A.

32. PSETA did not have a functioning audit committee during the year under
review as required by TR 27.1.

33. PSETA did not disclose remuneration relating to persons or members as
required by TR 28.1.4.

34. No evidence could be provided that a service level agreement had been
submitted by the required deadline as prescribed by TR 30.31(b),(d) , for the
period 2008-09.

35. PSETA did not submit the first quarterly report to the Department of Labour
as required by TR 30.2.1.

36. PSETA has not developed procedures to govern the reporting of performance
information as required by TR 30.2.1.

37. PSETA did not develop a materiality framework and agree its executive
authority as required by Treasury Regulations 28.3.1.

38. Bank reconciliations were not conducted at least weekly as per TR 31.1.2(j)
and other instances of weak cash management had occurred.

Skills Development Act
39. PSETA did not utilise SDL funds in the manner prescribed by Regulation
Gazette no. 8278 4(3) Governance framework
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40. The governance principles that impact the auditor's opinion on the financial
statements are related to the responsibilities and practices exercised by the
accounting authority and executive management and are reflected in the
internal control deficiencies and key governance responsibilities addressed
below:

Internal control deficiencies

41. Section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA states that the accounting authority must
ensure that the public entity has and maintains effective, efficient and
transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal control.
The table below depicts the root causes that gave rise to the deficiencies in
the system of internal control, which led to the qualified opinion. The root
causes are categorised according to the five components of an effective system
of internal control. (The number listed per component can be followed with
the legend below the table). In some instances deficiencies exist in more than
one internal control component.

Par. no. Basis for disclaimer opinion CE RA CA IC M

4 Comparative figures and 1,2,5,7 1,2 2,3,4 3 1,2,3
opening balances

5-6 Receivables 1,3,4,5 1,5 1,3,6 1,2,3

7-8 Payables 1,2,3, 1,2,5 2,3,4, 3 1,2,3
4,5,7 5,6,7

9 Cash and equivalents 1 1

10-15 Disclosure notes 1,4,5,7 1,2 4,5,6 1,3 1,2,3

16-18 Going concern 1,3,4, 1,2,3, 3,4,5,6 1,2,3
5,6 4,5

19 Related parties 1,3,4, 1,2,3, 3,4,5,6 1,3 1,2,3
5,6 4,5

20-22 Events after balance 1,3,4, 1,2,3, 3,4,5,6 1,3 1,2,3
sheet date and contingent 5,6 4,5
assets and liabilities

42. The Accounting Authority and management did not implement adequate
actions to address risks relating to the prior year audit findings. Adequate
control activities were not implemented to mitigate the risks relating to financial
reporting.

Legend

CE = Control environment

The organisational structure does not address areas of responsibility and lines of reporting to support effective control over financial reporting. 1

Management and staff are not assigned appropriate levels of authority and responsibility to facilitate control over financial reporting. 2

Human resource policies do not facilitate effective recruitment and training, disciplining and supervision of personnel. 3

Integrity and ethical values have not been developed and are not understood to set the standard for financial reporting. 4

The accounting officer/accounting authority does not exercise oversight responsibility over financial reporting and internal control. 5

Management's philosophy and operating style do not promote effective control over financial reporting. 6

The entity does not have individuals competent in financial reporting and related matters. 7
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RA = Risk assessment

Management has not specified financial reporting objectives to enable the identification of risks to reliable financial reporting. 1

The entity does not identify risks to the achievement of financial reporting objectives. 2

The entity does not analyse the likelihood and impact of the risks identified. 3

The entity does not determine a risk strategy/action plan to manage identified risks. 4

The potential for material misstatement due to fraud is not considered. 5

CA = Control activities

There is inadequate segregation of duties to prevent fraudulent data and asset misappropriation. 1

General information technology controls have not been designed to maintain the integrity of the information system and the security of the data. 2

Manual or automated controls are not designed to ensure that the transactions have occurred, are authorised, and are completely and accurately processed. 3

Actions are not taken to address risks to the achievement of financial reporting objectives. 4

Control activities are not selected and developed to mitigate risks over financial reporting. 5

Policies and procedures related to financial reporting are not established and communicated. 6

Realistic targets are not set for financial performance measures, which are in turn not linked to an effective reward system. 7

IC = Information and communication

Pertinent information is not identified and captured in a form and time frame to support financial reporting. 1

Information required to implement internal control is not available to personnel to enable internal control responsibilities. 2

Communications do not enable and support the understanding and execution of internal control processes and responsibilities by personnel. 3

M = Monitoring

Ongoing monitoring and supervision are not undertaken to enable an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. 1

Neither reviews by internal audit or the audit committee nor self -assessments are evident. 2

Internal control deficiencies are not identified and communicated in a timely manner to allow for corrective action to be taken. 3

Key governance responsibilities

43. The PFMA tasks the accounting authority with a number of responsibilities concerning financial and risk management and internal control. Fundamental to
achieving this is the implementation of key governance responsibilities, which I have assessed as follows:

No. Matter Y N

Clear trail of supporting documentation that is easily available and provided in a timely manner

1. No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or the availability of requested information. 3

Quality of financial statements and related management information

2. The financial statements were not subject to any material amendments resulting from the audit. 3

3. The annual report was submitted for consideration prior to the tabling of the auditor's report. 3

Timeliness of financial statements and management information

4. The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated deadlines (section 55 of the PFMA). 3

Availability of key officials during audit

5. Key officials were available throughout the audit process. 3

Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control and governance practices
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No. Matter Y N

6. Audit committee

• The public entity had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year 3

• The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of reference. N/A

• The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in section 77 of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.1.8. N/A

7. Internal audit

• The PSETA had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial year. 3

• The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan. N/A

• The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in Treasury Regulation 27.2. N/A

8. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of financial and risk management. 3

9. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 3

10. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the financial statements. 3

11. A risk assessment was conducted on a regular basis and a risk management strategy, which includes a fraud prevention plan, is documented and used as
set out in Treasury Regulation 27.2. 3

12. Powers and duties have been assigned, as set out in section 56 of the PFMA. 3

Follow-up of audit findings

13. The prior year audit findings have been substantially addressed. 3

14. SCOPA resolutions have been substantially implemented. N/A

Issues relating to the reporting of performance information

15. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of a performance report that is accurate and complete. 3

16. Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to ensure the accuracy and completeness of reported performance information. 3

17. A strategic plan was prepared and approved for the financial year under review for purposes of monitoring the performance in relation to the budget and
delivery by the PSETA against its mandate, predetermined objectives, outputs, indicators and targets as per Treasury Regulation 30.1 public entities 3

18. There is a functioning performance management system and performance bonuses are only paid after proper assessment and approval by those charged
with governance. 3

44.The accounting authority and management of PSETA did not ensure
compliance with legislation relating to governance matters throughout the year.

Investigations

45. As disclosed in note 13 and 14 to the financial statements, there are
pending forensic investigations that were initiated following allegations of
financial misconduct at the PSETA. Due to lack of supporting documentation,
I was not able to determine the effect on the financial statements and the
status of the investigations at the date of this report.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Report on performance information

46. I have reviewed the performance information as set out on pages xx to xx.

The accounting authority's responsibility for the performance information

47. The accounting authority has additional responsibilities as required by
section 55(2)(a) of the PFMA to ensure that the annual report and audited
financial statements fairly present the performance against predetermined
objectives of the public entity.

The Auditor-General's responsibility

48. I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the PAA
read with General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette No.
31057 of 15 May 2008.

49. In terms of the foregoing, my engagement included performing procedures
of an audit nature to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the performance
information and related systems, processes and procedures. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement.

50. I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for the audit findings reported below.

FINDINGS ON PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
Non-compliance with regulatory requirements
Submission of strategic performance plan

51. The accounting authority of the PSETA could not provide evidence that the
proposed strategic plan had been submitted at least six months before the
start of the financial year to the executive authority, as required by Treasury
Regulation 30.1.1.
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Lack of effective, efficient and transparent systems and internal controls
regarding performance management

52. The accounting authority did not ensure that the PSETA had and maintained

an effective, efficient and transparent system and internal controls regarding

performance management, which describe and represent how the entity's

processes of performance planning, monitoring, measurement, review and

reporting will be conducted, organised and managed, as required in terms of

section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA.

Usefulness and reliability of reported performance information

53. The following criteria were used to assess the usefulness and reliability of

the information on the entity's performance with respect to the objectives in

its strategic plan:

• Consistency: Has the entity reported on its performance with regard to its

objectives, indicators and targets in its approved strategic plan?

• Relevance: Is the performance information as reflected in the indicators

and targets clearly linked to the predetermined objectives and mandate? Is

this specific and measurable, and is the time period or deadline for delivery

specified?

• Reliability: Can the reported performance information be traced back to the

source data or documentation and is the reported performance information

accurate and complete in relation to the source data or documentation?

The following audit findings relate to the above criteria:

Reported performance information not reliable
Lack of source documentation

54. PSETA did not submit sufficient appropriate audit evidence in relation to

the existence of learners and occurrence of learnership transactions as reported

for all indicators of objectives 2, 3 and 4. In addition to this the completeness

of learnerships reported for indicator 4.1 could not be confirmed.

APPRECIATION

55. The assistance rendered by the staff of the PSETA during the audit is

sincerely appreciated.

Pretoria
02 November 2009
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PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILTY

Responsibility for Annual Financial Statements

The members of the Accounting Authority are responsible for the preparation
of the Annual Financial Statements.

Approval of the PSETA Annual Financial Statements

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2009,
have been approved by the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1)(f)
of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), no 1 of 1999 on 2
September 2009 and are signed on their behalf by:

Johannes Rantete
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Mahmood Fadal
Chairperson of the Board

f o r  y e a r  e n d e d  3 1  M a r c h  2 0 0 9

PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
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The Board of the PSETA has pleasure in presenting their report on the

activities of the entity for the financial year ended 31st March 2009.

Going concern

Board members believe that the PSETA will be a going concern in the

foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt a going concern

basis in the preparation of these annual financial statements.

SETA Re-establishment

SETAs were established for a five year period until 31 March 2010. The

PSETA has applied for the renewal of its certificate of establishment as

a SETA.  It is expected that the legislated renewal process will be concluded

by 31 March 2010.

Services rendered by the PSETA

The PSETA is regulated by Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and

is listed as a schedule 3A Public Entity in line with the Policy Framework

for the Governance and administration of the public sector institutions.

Corporate Governance arrangements

The composition of the Board is in line with the provisions of section 11
of the Skills Development Act, 1998 which requires that the SETAS should
carry out their mandate in consultation and cooperation with the stakeholders.
The Board is constructed and approved by the DPSA.

The Board set and executed their fiduciary responsibilities in line with the
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). The Board under the ultimate
responsibilty of the Chairman created sufficient space to maintain a

Internal Control Systems

To meet its responsibility with respect to providing reliable financial

information, the PSETA maintains financial and operational systems of

internal control. These controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are concluded in accordance with management's authority,

that the assets are adequately safeguarded against material loss of unauthorised

acquisition, use, or disposal and those transactions are properly authorised

and recorded.

The Chief Executive Officer attends meetings of the Board and its Committee

by invitation Being invloved with the day to day business activities, the

Chief Executive Officer is responsible for ensuring that decisions, strategies,

and views of the Board are implemented.

Compliance with legal requirements:

PSETA complied largely with the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).

Johannes Rantete
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Mahmood Fadal
Chairperson of the Board

PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
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PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 Mar 09 31 Mar 08

Notes

ASSETS

Non-current assets 15,490,410 15,490,410

National Skills Fund 15,490,410 15,490,410

Current assets 16,495,193 15,367,992

Cash and Bank 13,688,471 15,315,026

Interest Receivable 39,892 52,966

Other Receivables 7 11,115  -

Operational Fund 15 2,755,715 -

TOTAL ASSETS 31,985,603 30,858,402

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 243,406 1,880,130

Trade and other payables 8 217,789 1,829,893

Mandatory Grants Payable 9 25,617 50,237

TOTAL LIABILITIES 243,406 1,880,130

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 31,742,196 28,978,272

Accumulated Surplus 28,978,272 26,883,448

Surplus for the year 2,763,923 2,094,824

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31,985,602 30,858,403
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PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

31 Mar 09 31 Mar 08

Notes

REVENUE

Non exchange revenue 2,052,446.00 1,674,928.00

National Skills Income 2 - -

Levies Received 2,052,446 1,674,928

Exchange revenue 725,936 430,334

Finance Income 4 725,936 430,334

TOTAL REVENUE 2,778,382 2,105,262

EXPENDITURE

Expenses 14,459 10,438

Administrative expense - exchange expense 3 14,459 10,438

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 2,763,923 2,094,824
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PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

31 Mar 09 31 Mar 08

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers 2,052,446 1,674,928

Cash paid to suppliers and employees -1,651,183 -10,438

Cash generated from / (utilised in) operations 10 401,263 1,664,490

Interest received 739,010 430,334

Net cash inflows / outflows from operating activities 1,140,273 2,094,824

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - -

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan to Operational Fund -2,766,830 -

Net cash inflows / outflows from financing activities -2,766,830.00 -

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -1,626,557 2,094,824

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15,315,025 13,220,201

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13,688,468 15,315,025
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PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

31 Mar 09 31 Mar 08

Notes

Opening Balance 28,978,272 27,994,415

Adjustment to Opening Balance 11 - -1,110,967

Restated Opening Balance 28,978,272 26,883,448

Surplus for the year 2,763,923 2,094,824

Balance as at 31 March 2009 31,742,196 28,978,272
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PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting Policies

1.1 PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP), including
any interpretations of such Statements issued by the Accounting Practices Board, with the prescribed Statements of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board replacing the equivalent GAAP Statement as follows:

Standard of GRAP Replaced Statement of GAAP
GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements AC 101: Presentation of financial statements
GRAP 2: Cash flow statements AC 118: Cash flow statements
GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors AC 103: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

The recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP Statements do not differ or result in material differences in items presented and disclosed
in the financial statements. The implementation of GRAP 1, 2 & 3 has resulted in the following significant changes in the presentation of the financial statements:

1.1.1 Terminology differences

Standard of GRAP Replaced Statement of GAAP
Statement of financial performance Income Statement
Statement of financial position Balance sheet
Statement of changes in net position Statement of changes in equity
Net assets Equity
Surplus / deficit for the period Profit / loss for the period
Accumulated surplus / deficit Retained earnings
Contribution from owners Share capital
Distribution to owners Dividends
Reporting date Balance sheet date

1.1.2 The cash flow statement was prepared in accordance with the direct method therefore no change was brought about by the introduction of GRAP.

1.1.3 Specific information such as:
(a)  receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers;
(b)  taxes and transfers payable;
(c)  trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions must be presented separately on the statement of financial position.
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PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1.1.4 The amount and nature of any restrictions on cash balances is required
to be disclosed. Paragraph 11-15 of GRAP 1 has been implemented as the
budget reporting standard is in the process of being developed by the international
and local standard setter. Although the inclusion of budget information would
enhance the usefulness of the financial statements, non-disclosure will not
affect fair presentation.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. These
accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.2 CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in South African Rands since that
is the currency in which the majority of the entity transactions are denominated.
Figures are rounded to the nearest Rand.

1.3 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the annual
financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and
the application of judgment are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual
results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material
to the annual financial statements. Significant judgments include:

Trade Receivables
The company assesses its trade receivables for impairment at each balance
sheet date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in
the income statement, the company makes judgments as to whether there is
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a financial asset. The impairment for trade receivables is calculated
on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and
industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting
date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are
applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss
emergence period.

Impairment testing
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have
been determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations and fair
values. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It
is reasonably possible that the [name a key assumption] assumption may
change which may
then impact our estimations and may then require a material adjustment to
the carrying value of goodwill and tangible assets.

The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or
changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash
flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If
there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared
of expected future cash flows for each group of assets.

1.4 REVENUE

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the enterprise and these benefits can be measured reliably.

1.4.1 Levy income
In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999
(Act No.9 of 1999), registered member companies of the SETA pay a skills
development levy of 1% of the total payroll cost to the South African Revenue
Services (SARS).

Eighty percent of skills development levies are paid over to the PSETA (net of
the twenty percent contribution to the National Skills Fund).

Levy income is recognised on the accrual basis.

A net receivable/payable is recognised for levies accrued as well as estimated
SARS adjustments.  An estimate due to retrospective adjustments by SARS
and outstanding levies due at year-end is based on prior year trends. Changes
to prior year estimates are accounted for in revenue in the current period.
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PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

The PSETA refunds amounts to employers in the form of grants, based on
information from SARS.  Where SARS retrospectively amends the information
on levies collected, it may result in grants that have been paid to certain
employers. A receivable relating to the overpayment to the employer in earlier
periods is raised at the amount of such grant over payment, net of bad debts
and provision for irrecoverable amounts.

Revenue is adjusted for interseta transfers due to employers changing SETAs.
Such adjustments are separately disclosed as interseta transfers. The amount
of the interseta adjustment is calculated according to the Standard Operating
Procedure issued by the Department of Labour issued May 2007.

When a new employer is transferred to the PSETA, the levies transferred by
the former SETA are recognised as revenue and allocated to the respective
category to maintain its original identity.

1.4.2 Interest and penalties
Interest and penalties on the skills development levy are recognised on the
accrual basis.

1.4.3 Government grants and other donor income
Funds transferred by the National Skills Fund (NSF) are accounted for in the
financial statements of the PSETA as a liability until the related eligible special
project expenses are incurred, when the liability is extinguished and revenue
recognised.

Property, plant and equipment acquired through government projects are
capitalized in the financial statements of the PSETA, as the PSETA controls
such assets for the duration of the project. Such assets are disposed of in
terms of agreement.

Conditional government grants and other conditional donor funding received
are recorded as deferred income when they become receivable and are then
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the period necessary to match
the grants with the related costs which they are intended to compensate.
Unconditional grants received are recognised when the amounts have been
received.

1.4.4 Investment income
Interest income accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the
principal outstanding and the effective interest rate over the period to maturity.

1.5 GRANTS AND PROJECT EXPENDITURE

A registered company may recover a maximum of 70% of its total levy payment
by complying with the grant criteria in accordance with the Skills Development
Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act 1999 (Act No. 9
of 1999).

Mandatory grants
The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the employer
has submitted an application for a grant in the prescribed form within the
agreed upon cut-off period and the application has been approved as the
payment then becomes probable. The grant is equivalent to 50% of the total
levies paid by the employer during the corresponding financial period for the
skills planning grant and skills implementation grant.

Discretionary grants and project expenditure
A SETA may, out of any surplus monies, determine and allocate discretionary
grants to employers, education and training providers and workers of the
employers who have submitted an application for a discretionary grant in the
prescribed form within the agreed upon cut-off period. The grant payable and
the related expenditure are recognised when the application has been approved
and the conditions are met.

Project expenditure comprises:

• costs that relate directly to the specific project;

• costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated
to the project; and

• such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the SETA under the terms
of the contract.

Such costs are allocated using methods that are systematic and rational and
are applied consistently to all costs having similar characteristics.
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Discretionary grants and project costs are recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred. A receivable is recognised net of a provision for
irrecoverable amounts for incentive and other payments made to the extent
of expenses not yet incurred in terms of the contract.

1.6 IRREGULAR AND FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not
in accordance with, a requirement of any applicable legislation, including:
• The PFMA and
• The Skills Development Act.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain
and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against the
respective class of expenditure in the period in which they are incurred and
disclosed in a note in the period that it is identified.

1.7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset
when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the company; and

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service
it.If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated using rates applicable
to reduce their values to residual values over their expected useful lives, using
the straight line method. The depreciation rates are as follows:

Item Average useful life
Buildings 50 years
Fixtures and Fittings 10 years
Furniture and Equipment 6 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years
Information Technology 3 years
Intangible Assets 2 years

The residual value and the useful life of each asset are reviewed at each
financial year-end. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with
a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss. The
gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. The
gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds,
if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.8 LEASES

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease
if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.

The SETA as a lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables
at the amount of the PSETA's net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant rate of
return to the PSETA's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognosed on a straight line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.



PSETA ANNUAL NOV 09 (SPLIT) 11/11/09 1:31 PM Page 52 

Composite

C M Y CM MY CY CMY K

50

PUBLIC SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

The SETA as a lessee

Asset held under finance leases and the corresponding liability is recognised
at their present value of the value of the minimum lease payments at the date
of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor in included in the
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs,
which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and
the estimated present value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income
statement over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

1.9 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

Provisions are recognised when:

• the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to
be required to settle the obligation.

1.9.1 Grants payments
A provision is recognised for grant payments once the specific criteria set out
in the regulations to the Skills Development Act, 97 of 1998 have been complied
with by member companies and it's probable that the PSETA will approve the
payment. The measurement of the obligation involves an estimate, based on
the established pattern of past practice of approval for each type of grant.

1.9.2 Projects
No provision is made for projects approved at year end, unless the service in
terms of the contract has been delivered or the contract is of an onerous nature.

Where a project has been approved, but has not been accrued for or provided

for, it is disclosed as commitments in the notes to the financial statements.

1.9.3 Provision for employee entitlement
The cost of other employee benefits is recognised during the period in which

the employee renders the related service.  Employee entitlements are recognised

when they accrue to employees.  A provison is made for the estimated liability

as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.  Provisions

included in the reporting date are provisions for leave (based on the current

salary rates) and bonuses.

1.10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Seta's Statements

of Financial Position when the Seta becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument.

Financial Assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the

purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require

delivery of the investment within the framework established by the market

concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs

except for those financial assets classified as a fair value through profit or loss,

which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets can be classified into the following specified categories:

financial assets as 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL), 'held to maturity

investments', 'available for sale' (AFS) financial assets and 'loans and receivables'.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets

and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

All financial assets of the Seta were categorised as loans and receivables.
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Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as 'loans and
receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment. Interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is
either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. All financial liabilities
of the Seta were classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective
yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expenses over the relevant
period.  The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

1.11 RESERVES

The Reserves are made up of Administration reserve, Employer grant reserves,
discretionary grant reserve and Accumulated surplus in accordance with the
Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97
of 1998). The accrual basis of accounting is used to calculate the reserves
and thus reserves are not an indication of the cash used or available at the
end of the year.

Member employer company levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills
Development Act and the regulations in terms of the Act, for the purpose of:

2008/09 2007/08
% %

Administration costs of the PSETA 10 10
Employer Grant Fund Levy 50 50
Discretionary Grant 20 20

8.0 80
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In addition, contributions received from public service employers in the national

or provincial spheres of government may be used to pay for its administration

costs.

Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on

investments are utilised for discretionary grants and projects. Other income

received is utilised in accordance with the original source of the income.

The net surplus/deficit is allocated to the administration reserve, the mandatory

grant reserve and the discretionary fund reserve based on the above.

Surplus funds are moved to the discretionary fund reserve from the administration

reserve on the PSETA's board approval (after prior written approval from National

Treasury) and from the mandatory grant on fulfillment of the PSETA's payment

obligations.

1.12 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes

in presentation in the current year.

1.13 TAXATION

No provision has been made for taxation, as the SETA is exempt from income

tax in terms of Section 10 of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act 58 of 1962).

1.14 BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

2. Other income

31/03/2009 31/03/2008
Sundry Income - -

Total - -

3. Administrative expenses

31/03/2009 31/03/2008

Bank Charges 14,459 10,438

14,459 10,438

4. Finance income
Interest on - Cash and bank deposits 739,010 430,334

Total 739,010 430,334

5. Cash and cash equivalent
For the purposed of the net cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent
include  cash on hand and in banks and investments in fixed deposits. Cash
and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow
statement can be reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial
position as follows:

Cash on bank and on Hand  13,688,471 15,315,026 
Cash at bank 13,688,471 15,315,026
Cash on hand - -
Short term investments/instruments - -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 13,688,471 15,315,026

As required by Treasury Regulation 31.2, National Treasury approved the banks
where the bank accounts are held.

6. National skills fund

Fund Amount 5,490,410 15,490,410
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3. Administrative expenses

31/03/2009 31/03/2008

Bank Charges 14,459 10,438

14,459 10,438

4. Finance income
Interest on - Cash and bank deposits 739,010 430,334

Total 739,010 430,334

5. Cash and cash equivalent
For the purposed of the net cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent
include  cash on hand and in banks and investments in fixed deposits. Cash
and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow
statement can be reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial
position as follows:

Cash on bank and on Hand  13,688,471 15,315,026
Cash at bank 13,688,471 15,315,026
Cash on hand - -
Short term investments/instruments - -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 13,688,471 15,315,026

As required by Treasury Regulation 31.2, National Treasury approved the banks
where the bank accounts are held.

6. National skills fund

Fund Amount 5,490,410 15,490,410

7. Other receivables

Ethel Creations 7,980 -
P. Nkaiseng 3,135 -

11,115 -

8. Trade and other payables

31/03/2009 31/03/2008

Regenesys - 233,000
KLM Empowerment 131,305 169,424
DPSA -1,040 -1,040
Boston City Campus - 227,290
Softline VIP 747 747
Learners Allowance 86,777 1,200,472

217,789 1,829,893

9. Mandantory grants payable

The Competition Tribunal 25,617 25,617
Gauteng Partnership Trust - 24,620

25,617 50,237

10. Reconciliation of net cash flow from operating activities to net
surplus/(deficit)

Surplus for the year 2,763,923 2,094,824

Decrease in Creditors -1,636,724 -

Adjustment for items seperately disclosed

Finance Income -725,936 -430,334

Cash generate from Operations 401,263 1,664,490
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11. Correction of error
Learnership Allowances and Mandatory Grants Refunds pertaing to prior periods
were erroneously omitted from the respective periods' statements of performance.
The financial statements have been corrected retrospectively and comparative
figures have been restated to account for expenses. The effect of the restate-
ment on the financial statements is summarised below:

31/03/2009 31/03/2008

Increase in the Learnership Allowances Payable - 1,113,695
Increase in Mandatory Grants Payable - 50,237
Increase in Interest Receivable - -52,966

- 1,110,966

12. Material losses through criminal conduct, irregular, fruitless and
wastefull expenditure

Material losses through criminal conduct
The enterprise was affected by financial mismanagement through the perpetration
of fraud and thefts which were committed in 2005. The full extend of the
mismanagement is yet to be fully established. A forensic audit that was
commissioned in 2007 is still to be finalised. As at the reporting date the
former Finance Manager and two other alleged acomplises had been arrested
and the case was before the courts.

Irregular expenditure
None

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
None

13. Events after the reporting date
Subsequent to the year end, the former Finance Manager was convicted on 8
counts of fraud and 30 counts of theft for offences committed in 2005 whilst
in office. The two other accomplisses were acquited of all charges. PSETA
does not expect to recover these funds.

14. Contingencies

Possible Litigation
It is probable that the Department of Labour will seek legal action against the
SETA for the fund that were mismanaged as a result of fraudulent transactions
that were perpetrated by the former Finance Manager. The amount of the
possible claim is unknown as conclusive results of the investigations are still
pending.

15. Related party transactions

Transactions with other SETAs
None.

Transactions with other related parties

Related party Nature of relationship Transaction type 2008/09  2007/08

Receivables

Operational fund Related to DPSA Operational expenses 2,755,715 -

The above transaction arose as a result of operational expenses that were
processed and paid through National Skills Fund. The amount oustanding is
unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or
received. No expense has been recognised in the period for bad or doubtful
debts in respect of the amount owed by the related party.

DoL is the executive authority of the SETA and Skills Development Levies are
transferred from DoL.

16.  Government assistance

PSETA's operational expenses are budgeted under DPSA as a subprogramme.

Claims are made against the balance and any balance left at year end is

transferred back to National Treasury. The results of the Operational Fund are

accounted for and disclosed as part of DPSA. In 2008/09 the SETA received

R14.7 million and 11.3 million in 2007/08 in Government assistance.
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“The major challenge facing the country is the development of a skilled and educated workforce.

With only one in five (5) people skilled, the country simply does not have the

requisite skills and competencies to economically compete on equal terms in the global market.

In line with the Skills Development Levies Act,

the public service ought to be spending at least R1 billion per annum

on skills development and training.”

Minister of Public Service and Administration, the Honourable Richard Baloyi, at the PSETA Board Workshop, 20 February 2009
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